
• 
Reg!!. No. NE 907 

The Mizoram Gazette 
EXTRA ORDINARY 

Published by Authority 
• VOl. XII Aizaw1, Monday 31. 1. 83 Magha II SE 1904 Issue No. 12 

• 

• 

-

NOTIFICATIONS 

ASHOK ROAD 
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Dated 29th September, 19S2 

No. 82jMIZ-LA,i'2/79 - In pursuance of section [06 of the Representatior of the 
People Act, 19SI. the Election Commission of India hereby publishes the judgement 
and order dated 19.8.1982 of the High Court of GJuhati at Gauhati ill Election 
Petition No.2 of 1979 . 

( HERE PRINT THE ORDER ATTACHED) 

By order, 

S. C. Jain, 
Under Secretary 

IN THE GAUHATI HIGH COURT 

(High Court of Assam, Nagaland, Meghalaya, Mallipur & Tripura) 

ELECTION PETITION NO.2 OF 1979 

Mr. R. Thanglialla PETITIONER 
Versus 

Mr. Zairemthanga & Qrs RESPONDENTS 



For the Petitioner 

For tr.e respondents 

Dates of argument 

Date of Judgement 

Ex--12,'83 

PR ESENT 

The Hon'ble Mr. Justi\,.e S.M. Ali 

.. . . 

Mr. A.H.Mazumdar 
Mr. B.Prasad 
Mr. R.P.Kakati 
Mr. S.Latif 
Mr. N.Z.Ahmed, Advocates 

Mr. N.M.Lahiri 
Mr. K.K.Bezbaruah 
Mr. P. C.Katak v 

Mr. D.K.Bhattacharya 
Mr. A.CUpadhyaya 
Mr. D.K.Das, Advocates. 

29.3,82. 30.H2, 31.3.,2, 
1.4.82, 7.6.62, 9.6,82, 10.6.82 
11.6.82, 12.6.b2, 1 5.6.82. 
16.6.82, 17.6.82, 18.6.82 
21.6.82 to 26.6.82 

19.8.82 

JUDGE MENT & ORDER 

• 

• 

Petitioner Shri R. Thangliana submitted this Election petition under section 80 A � 
read w�th "ections 81 and 101 of the Rtpresentation of People Act, 1951 (for 
short, the Act), ch81lenging the ejection of ;:espondent No.1, Shri. Zair�mthanga t o  
the Legislative Assembly o f  the Union Tcuitory of Mizoram in the general elections 
held in April, 1979 from Assembly Constitl:.�.lCY No. 29 Aizawl West on the allega-
iions of corrupt practices under sub·sccticil 3, 3(A) and 4 of section 123 of the Act. e 

The petitioner and respondent !'\o. 1 were among the 7 candidates contesting 
for the Assembly seat of 20 Aizawl WeSt \Sch�duled Tribe) Constituency and the 
petitioner was a nominee of the Congress I Party and resrondent No. I WaS nominee 
of the People's Confernce Party of �1izor<:.m which was a regional p:lrty to fight 
for the s'-"'at in the said constituency. No�if(a1ion under section 15 of the Act 
issued by the Administrator of Mizoram was published in the Mizoral1l Gazette 
Extra ordinary Vol. VIII, Aizawl dated 233.79 (Annexure -1). calling upon the 
voters to elect memb�( to the Mizorarl1 Assembly from the aforesaid constitu­
ency. The Election Commission by a notiflcation dated 23.3.79 (Annexurc-2) appoin­
ted 30th March, 1979 as last d:lte for submitting nomination papers, 2nd Apnl, 

1979 as the last date for withdra\\al of candidnure and 7th May, 1979 as the 
date before which the c1ecti('r} should be t:DIT,pJeted. The- date of election in thc 
constituency was fixed afld Election was bdd cn 27.4.'79. The petiticner as \\ell as 
the respondent sUbmitted their nominatioi1 pa1)ers in the prescribed form on due 
date which were scn.ltinised on 315t MardI, 1979 and the nominatiou 
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�aper of tI�c petitioner <tnd (If t�e respondents \.\'CiC declared valid Oil :.crUtil'y by t e R�turnllJg .<?ffi.ccr. The , elec!JOn sym bol . of� respondent No. j was ' sca/c', and that ot the �ctlt1vne� "'as. ur�f1ght . hand facmg palm' which was the OJficial reserved s)�l l ; b()l OJ
. JndJ,w NatIonal Congress (1). The totd number of voters 1�1. 29 .Alzawl '/lest were 10,013. It is averred by the petilioner !II tbe pet�ti?ll Ulal Jbout 80:>� of those vok-rs were jhum cultlYators and that most of. t.�!ern Were tilLer iJ;;relate �r semi , literate. It is further alleged that ma!1Y Nepal! l;orkh,lS, mostly engBged In reallng cows for milk were among the votmg population of the said constituency 

2. As usu.��l Gn SUC;] occasiuns the c�r.didat(s and their parties started �:anvassing 
and campa lgl Lg aJno�·lg thc voters. 1t lS alleged that resrnndent No. I and his pai­
tymen and \\'�!; b.�IS I�su(;;d appeal:; 10 the voters of the constituency n(ol to vote 
for the petitioner en the ground that the petitioner's party was a non-tri!Hd orga­
nisation. It is the petitioner's cae;c that after he hz:d covered almost the entire area 
of his constitut':;;cy '.pprising the elvctors about his election symbol it V"1.S fcund 
in the bter part of election canJpaigning that dummy ballot papers \\,tTe being 
distributed by t>:: wcrkers of the People�s Conference Party in 29 A.za\\' l west 
Constiturncy. This n',atter came to the knowledge of the petitioner on 25.4.79. The 
said dummy 1;al1ot p�lpefs (Annexure-3) contained the names and respecti\'e ·,ym­
bois of all the candidates of the constituency except that :n place 
of the re::tl election symbol or t:1e petitioner viz., 'up-rig!lt right halld facip,� palm', a 
left hand glove with a trident in the middle of the palm was displayed 
111 dummy ballot paper against the name of the petitioner. This 
ha'nd-glove wa� placed in a horizontal POSItlO1l and aU this to 
mislead the voters. Tile dummy ballot paper contained an ;:ppeal at its top nade 
by respondent No. I \\ith his name below the appeal. Dummy ballot parers C011-
taini ng nanies and symbols of the candidate's of other constituencies cOlltaininr the 
symbol of Conrress (1) candidate in [he same manner as in Annexure - 3 ,-vere 
published and distributed by the People's Cr!nference Party i n  other neit,bbolring 
constituencies also including No. 27 Aizawl North (ST) Assembly Con3titucncy . 
In No. 27 Aiz-1wl Nc:th Constituency the Congre�s (1) candidate \vas Shri P.C. 
Bawitiuanga who inf(lrmed the pelitioner about the distribution o/" wrong anc of­
fensive dn�11lT;Y b::tllot Jnpers in his constituency. The matter was infcllTItd to 
Congress (I) C;� flcral Secretary Shri. I.alsangzuala who t00k up the matter with the 
Returning Ofl'ic�l.:'r, Aiza wI district bm the latter did not entertain his complaint 
and advised him to file election pet ition (]fter the elections ,",,'ere over. These dum­
my ballot pape l S wu� distributed on and from 25th April, 1979 in Khath - Bung­
kawn area and (";n 27.4.79 in Tuikua. area both within 29 Aizawl 'Vest Constitlcn­
cy by the work:.::;·s, ag;::nts ilnd partymcn of respondent No. I \vitl� k:lOwlcdge 
and consent (Jr r:;:�pondent No. I. The further averments of the election petitioncr 

. afe th1t respondent 1\0. L his wOlkers, agents, supporters and partymen who dis­
tributed the dummy ballot pflpers kll'�w and believed that the symbol of ihe peti­
tioncr (symbol of Congress-I) as depicted in the offensive dummy ballo! pa )C1S 
was wrong ;.ud IJJ'Je and that they published and distributed such ballot papers in 
order "to cau.�c undue influence and misrepresentation in relation to the candida­
ture of !h',� p�titioncr and to prejudice the petitioner's prospect" of election. Sijch 
dummy ballot paners were abo hung lip in the available public noticl' boards 
in different places of the constitlicm:y. The dummy ballot papers distributed.in 
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27 Aizawl North Constituency contained. on its reverse side and appeal in th
,
e 

name of one Mawils Mawi's Mother ask�ng the voters to vote for the People s 
Conference Party being a Mizo organisat�on and not to vote for. the Congress 
(I) Party as it was a non-Mizo organisatIOn (Acnexuf,e - 4). It , I S ,averr,ed lh.at 
the statement that Congress (Il Party ",as a nap - MIl? orgamsatton IS qUIte 
false due to the fact that there are mem?crs 01 t�e Congress (I) . Party V:'ho 
belong to Mizo Scheduled Tribe commumty. of Mlz01:am. an� that III that VIew 
the statement that Congress 0) is a non-MIlo orgamsatIOD IS completely false. 
it is further alleged by the petitioner that in Mizoram there has been a can· 
siderable hostile feeling against the non-Mizo peoplf': residing th.ere and that due 
to those communal appeals, the election prospects of the petltlOner were adver-
sely affected and prejudiced. The aforesaid dumm� ballot pape.rs and the ap- � " peals on communal ground 'A-cre printed and published at the Instance of res-
pondent No. I and distributed among the voters by his partymen, agents and 
workers with his knowledge and consent. 

5. It is further averred by the pel:tioner that the said Khatla Bungkawn area co-
vers three villages having voters numbering 3056. The four ladies 
who distributed the dummy ballot papers in tbat area (I) Lalkros-
thangi, (2) Tlangengi, (3) Lalbeiseii, and (4) Zodinpuii Sailo. 011 27.4.79 being the. 
date of election, dUJl1n�y ballot p J:'O.'- \I.·ere cisl1ibt,tfG in Tuikt'<I1 area by Shri 
Thangthuama and Shri. C.RamliHlla. It is also alleged that one Shri. Hrangdailova, 
a responsible officer of the Government Press at Aizawl and a Gezetted officer of 
the Government of the Union Territory of Mizoram canvassed. for respondent No 
I from door to door under the inf luence of respondent No. T The dummy bollot. 
papers containing misrepresentation of the election symbol of Congress (I) and a 
communal apJ!eal of one Mawi's Mother Were distributed in 27 Aizawl North 
Con� tituency which is contiguous to 29 Aizawl \Vest Constituency and that such 
dummy ballot papers also f0und their way into 29 Aizawl \Vest Constituency. 
6. On realising the wrong as aforesaid done by the respondent, his partymen . 
agents and workers in publishing and distributing tr:e illt:gal dummy ballot papers, the 
President of people's Conference Party, Khatla Unit, Mr. D.P.Liankaia on 25.4 .79 
issued a letter ( Annexure-5) to the Assis.tant Returning Officer regrelting publi, 
cation and distribution of aforesaid dummy ballot papers and the appeals. The peti­
tioner alleges that such a last minute letter could not cOUnter the harm or damage 
done to his election prospects. Election was held on 27.4.79 in 29 Aizawi West 
Constituency and the counting of votes took place on 29.4.79 whereafter respondent 
No. I was declared elected by the Returning Officer. While respondent N o. J got in  
his faviour 2 ,448 votes, the petitioner got 1,449 votes. According to the petitioner 
the result of the election has been materially affected by the aforesaid corrupt 
practices committed by respondent No. I, his party, workers, agents and supporters 
with his consent and knowledge. 

7. According to the petitioner he would have been elected but for the corrupt 
practices adopted by respondent No. I just before the poll in order to gain undue 
advantage and to prejudice the election prospect of the petitioner. He therefore 
prays for declaration of the election of respondent No.1 as void and for declara­
tion that the petitioner was elected from 29 Aizawl West Constituency. 
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8. The hl'st rc-;ponJent submitted a petition under section 97 of the !.ct Oil 30. 
7.79 on th� L)[L)w',n� ai!eg:l.tions. "rhnt the elcctTO.) petitioner did not comply \vith 
the rC'�1�ir21H':m:, or ",�ct"on 3:�(5) of the Ad, tlEt the ejection petitione- took re­
course to SOille cnrrUj)1 practices 011 IJ-·C poll (by Le. on 27.4.79 which arc detailed 
in the applicJtull but which arc Int require:::! for the purpose of adjudicuting the 
election petit:o:l beG�me no evjdenc,� 011 recrin'lin;�tion has been adduced bv the 
re:,poildcilt in L'ili::. PI ,'ceedillg. it j, cO.dcnucLl that the election petitioner �'as 3. 
voter of n .,\i/HV: EJst Cnll�-;lItL:en::y; but along with his nomim_tion 
paper he did no� S ::)]i-dl a c,-'py of ;he electoral roll of No. 2:) Ailawl 
E::lSt Con:)j:�t'.l.::n;:) or t:,� fci·::-Iil.lt parl thereof or cenified C00:.' of the 
reL::vant e:1tri,:.� ill 51J:h toll t;lercb�,' ..::ontravenl.lg LIe mandator) provlsln,l'i of sec· 
tion 33 lSj of the AI:t. The eic<.:tion petitior<cr ais0 did not produce hefore the 
Returning O;-:-;l'�<' t:l\.. time of scn.l1:·'Y (,n 31.3.7iJ ;1 c)py cf the �Iecknl roll of 
No, 25 AiLt\\'i t:.:lst ;\. s�erlJbly Connitueacy or a copy cf lhe relevant rart thereof 
Of a certified c::rry orthe releva l t elllJics thereof as provided under the afoft'said 
section, The i':l:"dl�r :1IJ:gJtiDn is t:1;:( 011 th'.? date of scnltiny t:1� eJ,:ction n'�titiClnc:­
was abs,�n: il'(l11 Lnc OfEce of tile R�turning Odieer ,It t1:c time of scruli�,y oJ'the 
nominJ.tion p.l{kTS tlle,'e being nob�)dy to represent hi:n �lt the rrLvant t!�ne b{.[ore 
the Returnmg Offic.:::', Thereiore the petitioner sho: ld n:)t be t'"c:ltcd "s a C<l'l­
didate with r,-,,,::;::ct 1.J 29 Ai,:awl W·o'st Constilljet�C\' far \ .. llic;l i.e h�L' liD bcus 
standi file t:1''': ��lection Petition, 

� 

9. TIl.: '�;':":lI>J,1 D�tjtioner SUbil�ittcd a \Hitten statcillCi'lt Iii cOIlj"Cl.�ion \vith 
tn.: ITcrim;illC, ) I lJ��i�'ion fikd by i\:spondcnt r\o. 1 under S'_'ctlC'n 97 of the Act 
denying p)illr-;v',,;::: the alleged C,)ITUj.t pra�tices stated it; the lccnmination appli­
CatiLlil and (Y'L�Lltlng t:tat the [ir:.t llCspondellt to<)k to COIT.:pt pL,ctice: b)i p"bli­
shing tll..: dJl1 :1)' bali.ot plper and u-= appnl as detaibl iil th': d'::ction oeti�i()n, 
As I"CgMUS tll.: '.t: c�cl,jon iTI1d� by �11e r:slxmd2nt regHdillg IL,n·complL.1I�,'e of the 
p{Qvi.,i')�'IS Ot' ;�_:I'J 1 �,3 (5) of [h: A t, Cl� pdit oner -:.laL;s tr'ut lJ� \\,<15 n;"'::,ent on 
31.3./) III t1,� -.) n::;e 01 r:1� K�tJ.!i1ing OJiser along tht: ' SeCi"ftarv 
of Coogre';, (lj eN 3) W:Ln tbe 1l0,11il'luilon pa -lL�.-'; or No. 29 Aizaw\ Ylest As�· 
s:,n'oly C,.m,�u'.l_·'J'.:y \V�re tJL.l 'elf) �'.)[ <.:rujlj�., j'll? pditiJiiCr admits f.1;lt he 1S­
a vot::f 0; 2,3 -\ /.t,v; E.ht ConsUtuciIC)-.' ,mi ILt ,l\" the 20 Aizaw\ West and that 
he did n·)t file a �.'(;r\,' ()f the eJector .. ,1 iOll uf No, LS Aiz�:\\l F:'st C()l!:,'_itu.:nc:i 
or relevant �,1c::C:) l " ,' .,A . j�; ' ''; 'Nlth the 'no,'l1ination parer bt t ,1 the til',": 0;' :,(..'ru· 
Li;lY n: siD,v..;,1 � 1': eh..:t-.)j',;j roil of ;�o. 28 Aiz.livl E'l'>t ASoC�i:L\y CJllst:'UCLC:: to 
t.l:: R:tur.1;,a.� Y:l'::f W1.) 'i,;,'lt:eJ. t",1,.� ,'lcctl)!,<ll roll 01' the �clid constit:ll'ncy that 
W1S Ij'11!:� \V"il I' n T,.� ?,.':t.ll·lJ>1E {!.I·.eer get s:,li�rild 8m: to the p,::titi(l,lcr teing 
a Voter (1�' ;:. , /\: 'x,,,\ E [;'. '�:.l'b;I,71': ::"1.' anG c'>:f;�:xd. th: 1l0lTiin",:ion pOe!" OJ' 
the p:ti1.l0<lcl. : L i'U(t Ll 'it lk'S t : It Ild.l"'" Ul' !:i,.: ,; ,tit �titlg G�ndidatcs or tiltir re· 
preS0I1Elli,e:; nuj::ckd to the accl'pt;ll!c� f:of t'c nonl:ilatloe l��'P\'T ('I j"1f; .1cc­
tion p�tilioJl.:r at the ti�l1C of ·;.::ruti�lY. The pditiDllcr t!ICTdore ha''''ing com, 
plied \'t .. ;th HIe r;:;q lif,>m�nls of s�,':tiPll 33 (5) or the A,:t \1ctS :-:uITki' ll1. Lcus 
,,;t'ltl'li to file th� election petitiljl1 as a. candicLtc cig1inst the rcspondcr;t. 

W. In hi5 \\Tii.It.:i1 statement chtCl: 19,6.S\, fir'it responder,!" !v'll" Z:!inJI lL:T!!;1 rt­
iterate" the non"c.)J11p·�t('Jl<:� or the pl:ction retttioncr (;IS allq�,.cj H'j 1'.1', ("':'1"';,'1(, J-ion 
under Sectiop 91 of the I\ct to challenge clcclion nr rcsp(ll"l,kllt 1',(), 1 frJl1 29 
Aizol\v\ Wf�"t C\!ll',titUl�nl'Y. It is add __ u in tilt' written st;ltPtnClIt that the cb:li0n :;ym· 
bol allotted to th;:: electiun J,ditiol1u vas a "Land" and llct "[In lip-right knd frcing 
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palm" a� cLl med. Further averments of the respondent arc that the percentage of 
cultivators in 29 Aiz:.1Wl West was not 80% but was only 5'01.% vide "Urban 
Cen.sllS 1979, J\'d;zordn�" issued by the I3urc,:t! (JI' -Economics and Statistics, Mizorarn 
Admmi�,llation and t11<lt the rcrcent3gc ct" liteJ<llY in 11;(1t constituency 'Nere Nepali 
Gurkkl people most of whom wefC retired Gowlilmenl sClvanls and that in the 
constitllr;:ncy" lh;i'� \\'cre oniy seven \'ilhtgcs <l.nd one sub-village at the relevant time. 
rhl" j"::-P';;-:'.),,:!., �_;( 1';C5 hn\ .rg ;s:;ucd any appe al ,-,sking' the voters not to vote for 

the el'::(' :c'n P;�;!i>.-,l''::· 0;1 thr: g;'cund tkJ his par y \\<lS non tribal. He also denies 
thai lli, , ) ,tr i ) p':,.';: cr \\'Ol'kl:i s '--'�.rrjcd on uny pr." a;�,\nd0. bn,nding Congress (I) 
Patty '-t_, ;, ; .T-t,ibal or:':.)[;i5.<lll'-'n <lnd tb."t the r(spoa(�(rt or his party viz., the 
Peo)L':o CV.;'�'I, __ j;"C P,jl.� r".l))i�; d' ;1111' dumy ba!ht parer sho\"'ing a wrong 
:.ymbol Ilg;Hl>L tL_ petltJLiacr\ L::n:e in order to prejl!dice the prospect of the peti­
tioller\ elecLon. 1 t is further contccded b) th,� respondent that "[ven jf any 
such GL':TH,lY �� ,.>, p:lpcrs \\'\.'::-c printed (jl p:,:hiislled, the same \\as dt1ne without 
the knowledtc. r�)Ps('tlt or COl";llivance of respnndtnt No. I. In <-llly view purported 
circulalic';101 dl.l1!my buliot papers can ne\er be reasonably calculated to prejudice 
t;lC p;O�p:';l'l or the election of tile e ccti:m pctitioner." The res-
pu.lde.lt disov,-ns any corrupt practj( c  \\-hatscever as defined under 
section 133 of the Act having been resorted to by him cr his 
election ag�nt and catcgorically deB Ie:. haying tf ken msistancc of ,,1':y Government 
offic ial or of Government machinery in connecti0 1 \\,ith his election campaign. He 
further c;::-;-;:c:s th:,1 on 25J!.79 the 6tatcd ciuE':n�}.' JaUot papers W,;i"C (!i�tributed a­
iJJOng li:,,' \'otc:-s ir kl�(1tla Bungkawn ;-trea and that the :ad:cs nam,ed in the election 
petition ,-_Ji<;;tribut:;;G t}lC same dummy bal:ot papen. He plez-os his ignorance 3cout 
2ny ba llot pap'::r col1t�tining Wro�lg symbol of Cllll!!rCSS (1) paltv or/clnd aileged COm­
In;,r al appea l of :\lav, ii's !VIother having found its Wi:t_y 10 29 Aizawl \Ve::t Consti .. 
meney from :27 Aiz:1wl North Constituency and denies any appeal having been 

:.,-� d::,)idiud th,:: Congress (I) paa} as a nOIl-lrib2.1 olg,lnlsatioJ1. The lespon­
,-,�. U";:,llC" · .. ," Lie _� \\<:1S allY tlOstile [,:elmg In Mlzoram ",gainst the non-Mlzo 
pccj:;!e residing iuej(�. He adds under para 26 of the written statement "In this 
connccl;on tLe (-i'lJ"; ... cr�l1g L':-';),_;;il:ent bL';c; to qatE: tbat Shri, D.PJ iankaia was me­
rely ': Pr�s;dcnl "f t!:e Kl""L'a P.e. l:nit wt;[C;1 is llo.h!TI:,� hut a '1J\lage' unit and 
Lh: ,;::.:gcd !cUt'r ,,?tr.,_l Li.-;'.'!9 ',vas \"l"lItCi1 to l;-l' Af:,':>i�'lant Returning Officcr, Elre­
,jt)l1 ,0 til': :viiZt, ,',dTi L ,1sialive !�,';�,e�Lf-dy. ;\\7;1\\ \ by him en his m\fI :n.d without 
.:uthority .lllJ kno\' L;ug.: ::II-,d con:-,;.:i'l ur respondent :t-.;o. I an% r the agent. E­
ven if tile KhaLla village unit of the party did not au thorise Shri. D.P. Liankaia to 
write this letter". 

1 i. " WI !�U.;l _,t�:�\" '�l \\J.� subm itted h:-; re�rL'rLlel�t 1\10. 7, Shri. 
/-'. L,;l. t{ _ i �;'l<n:� Omecr for 29 Ai?:.:\\ \'iC-q A��embhl 'Consti-

l\ I-;�¢ndli":.�: ;>-i� ),1 \'iizorr111 the pcrccp��'f':C� of lite!'acy ·]s 53.79 
�u,d :il':l tj-.� �, .. jj;': <.: 'lcU of iitcracy \\';1:' tht.�rc in th 7.f) AizelW\ We�t and that 
,:1'_'; rc ,,;,j\ 4 �"i' <,:r':.;li \'OlC:� j-- :,ti.' <"',id i:I�ll ,fill �n�\'. H..: fwtiler �tajc� "That 
'Nlll: '; ' ':I! (il lih� ·lIL:g-.t1inll� ill1 V,il"I,1US \:\l11!1t�, qj" p:op8ganda alkgrd to hr-tve 
hT: Iii ,de 1,_\ II )1)(\lld�'nt N;) I t!](' r,-�pondclll 1 C'!"i tn slntc lh8t w'. le1'0rt ()f 
"lIdl ['i,")', g,'ll<i:l \\;,,� hr(l llgl d to thE' Iwtic" of the n spOlH!fnt". He tkntes that he 
<lid not lake am [11:1]011. wk::n 11':.': \V3S illfldll:ed about the distribution of the dum·· 
lily h�'�I"1 pullc/I'J the PC<.lpll·:; COll1:'H'IlCe ParI\, -in No. ':,7 Aiz,l\v\ NPlth Assem­
':1) I, ,Ill'lltudl'.y, :1:.; 1"_ :,pondent rdL11,_d the: 1l:1tlcr t,_, the Supcrintend[;'nt of 
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Police, Aiz.�wl jj"trict �or tak!l14 l1�C;�S�3.fY actiO:l, imm:::diately after the r:::port was 
ma?� to him. He '7dm1t'i that �he letter ref�rred to under para 19 of the eienion 
petItIOn W,15 submitted by Shf!. D.P. Liankaia, Pre ... ident of the Peopie's Confe­
rence Part�, Khatll on �6th Aprii, 1979 to the Assistant Returning Officer and 
that th.e s�ld ,letter \V.lS l:nn�dlltelv reL:rred to th<.:: S!lperintendent of Pdlice, Ai 
zawl dbtnct Inr ncce�sary actIO(1. H � does not admit that there was any mistake in 
the electoral ml! " in violdtion of th� provision of the Registration {Jf Electors 
Rolls or other bws". 

/ 12. On the ple:ding , of the parties the following issues have been struck for de­
cision of the case :-

(1) Whether appeals were issued by Responder,t No.1 in his dummy b.d­
lot paper.s exhorting the voter,; not to  vote for the petitioner 0n the prnund that 
his party (t'-l� petitioner's party) was a non-Tribal organ�sation ? \V:!ether it 
was done for the purpose of prejudicially affecting the prospect of the petitio­
ner's ele..::ti)]1? If so, wheth-::r it amounted to corrupt practice under section 
123 of n, l�,prerentation of the People Act, 1951 ? 

(2) W,le�h"!r Respondent N). lIs party published dummy balkt p<'�'ers 
showing wrong ele;;tion symbol �)f the petitioner? \Vhether the st'id dummy 
ballot pa:-x�rs were issued with the knowitdge and consent of Resp;:>ndem 1'�0. 1 
and diSL'iruted in o;;evei'al vilLl"�es referred tJ in puas 12, 13 and 14 of the 
election rc it ion ? 

(3) W jleLl'�r Respondent No. I procured the assistance of SJui. I-Trang­
dailova, all i:npo_"t tnt Offic'�r of the Government Press at Aiz::l\vl ? \\'hether 
the said SJui. Hrangdailova canvassed for Rl!spondent No. I from door to 
door and whether he was a G12:etted Officer of the Govel nment o� Mizoram 
at the rei, ',tnt tilne 1 If so, w�lether th�s"0 amounted to COrf"pt pral:C:ccs com· 
mitted by Kcspondent No. I contemplated u/s. 123 of the RcprefeniaLon of 
the People Act, 1951 ? 

(4) \V)1�ther the President of Rcspcmdcnt No. 1's party issued a letter to 
the Assisunt R.::t:Jrning Officer on 25.4.79 regretting ahout the it'Stic of the 
dummy ballot !1J oers? Did the Returning Officer t2.ke ar:y action in :nrcct 
of the comiJbinl m_,de by Shri. Lalsangzuala on 23.4.79 ? 

(5) \-Vhether tht; acts and conducts refferred to in the Issues aJove 
amount to co, fupt practice uls 123 of the Representation of the P�;ople Act 
or can be grounds for setting as de the election of Respondent No.1? 

(6) "\!nether tile �\e��i,J,l p�tit"::u;r R. Thanglianl is an elector lfNcl. 29 
Aizawl \Vest AssEmbly Constituency or of No. 28 Aizawl East AssembJy Con­
stituency :;'!ld wh�ther th;! pelitio�1�r complied with the provic;ions nC Se,::tinn 
33(5) or t1,: R"p'esentation of the People Act, I 951 by submittinr- llong with 
his norninJtion paper a copy of the Electaral Roll and/or by producing the 
Electoral Roil at lhe time of scrutiny of nomination papers on 31.3.79 and whe­
ther his nJlninatioll is a nullity and is void abinitio due to contraventioll of 
Sectio"n 33 (Slof "the said Act"' and whether th� election petitioner has locus 
standi to cull in question th(,; election of the Respondent No.1 hy filing the 
election pdi�i'"lI1 and whether in the aforesaid view of the matter t!le election 
petition :: 11l�tiatajnable? 
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(7) To what relief or relief. the parties are entitled to ? 

13 The election petition waS filed on 1 2.6.79 alld after framing of issues, the 
m,:tter came before me on 1 0.7.81 and thereaftcl both parties took adjournments 
on several occasions and hence the delay. 

14. During the course of hearing, the third Issue was abandoned by the election 
petitioner and to evidence \vas adduced in this respect and the n:;crirnination mat­
ter has been put of t� a later stage. 

15. Before entering on decision of the Issues, it is felt convenient to set out the 
principles indicating the nature of aud approach to and election dispute as enuncia­
Led in several cases by the Supreme Court. Out of a large number of decisions on 
the principles guiding election matters, only a few are mentioned be1cw which are 
though quite sulllcient to point o,ut the correct nature of the proceeding, and the 
proper scope of enquiry in such a case. 

16. In D. Venkata Reddy V. R. Sultan & Ors , AIR 1976 Sc 1599, their Lorshlps 
observed: 

"In a democracy such as ours, the purity fInd sanctity of elections, the 
sacrosanct and sacred n3ture of the electoral process must be preserved and 
maintained. The valuable verdict of the people [It the polls must be  given 
due respect and condour and should not be disregarded or set at naught on 
vague, indefinite, frivolous or fanciful allegations or on evidence "hich is of a 
shaky or prevaricating character. It is well settled that Ihe onus lies heavily 
on the election petitioner to make out a strong case for setting aside an election. 
In our country election is  a fairly costly and expemive venture and the Repre­
sentation of ' the people Act has provided sufHcient safeguards to make the 
elections fair and free. In these circumstances, therefore, election re!'uits CODDot 
be lightly brushed aside in eleclion disputes. At the same time it i s  necessary 
toJ protect the purity and sobriety of the election by ensuring that the candi­
dales do not S�Clire the valuable votes of the people by undue influence, fraud, 
communal pJOpaganda, bribery or other corrupt practices as laid down in the 
Act." 

Another principie that was laid down in that case is : 
.. . ..... the election petitioner in order to succeed must plead all material 
particulars and prove them by clear and cogent evidence. The allegations of 
corrupt practices being in the nature of a qua"i criminal charge the same 
rnmt be proved beyond any shadow of doubt. 

Where the election petitioner seeks to prove charge by purely partisan evidence 
consisting of hi',; workers, agents, supporters ,md friends, the Court would have 
to approa(;h the evidence with great care and c.1ution, scrutiny and circumspec­
tion, and would. as law, require collaboration of such evidence from indepen­
dent quarters, unless the Court is fully satisfied that the e-vidence is so credit­
worthy and true, spotless and blemisbless, cogent and consistent, that no cor­
roboration to lent further assurance is necessary". 

• 

• 
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b Dhanu KUmar V. Mohanlal. AIR 1971 SC 2025 it was laid down:-
"The Court is always vigilant to watch not only the conduct of the candidates 
and protect their character and conduct of the public is not corroded by cor. 
fupt motive or evil puryoses of candidates. The genuine and bonafide aims 
and aspirations of candidates have to be protected on the one hand and maw 
lafide abuse and arrogance of power will have to  censured on the other". 

In Abul Hussain Mr V. Samsul Hud., AIR 1975 SC 1612, it was observed : __ 
"Even -so certain basic guidelines can not be lost sight (,f while adjudgmg the 
election dispute. The verdict at the polls wears a prospective mantle in a de­
mocratic polity. The Court will vacate s�ch ballot count return only on proof 
beyond reasonable double of corrupt practIces. Charges, such as have been im­
puted here, are viewed as quasi-criminal, carrying other penalties than losing a 
seat, and strong testimony is needed to subvert a returning Officer's declaration". 

In N. Bimala Devi V. K.M. Reddi. AIR 1975 SC 1135, it was laid down that Where 
a corrupt practice is alleged against a returned candidate it must be scrutini�ed with 
considerable care because a finding tc that effect has very serious consequence and 
that it not merely sets aside the popular verdict but also subjects the successful 
candidate to the penalty of being disqualified for election and even criminal prose­
cution. 

In Inamiti Mallappa Basapp. v. Desai Bagararaj Ayyappa & ors., AIR 1958 
SC 698 it was laid down that "An election contest is  not an action at law or a suit 
in equity but is a purely statutory proceeding unknown to the common law and 
the Court possesses no common law power. An election petition is not a matter 
in  wh,ich the only persons interested are candidates who strive against each other 
in the elections. The public also are substantially interested in i t  and thif, is not 
merely in the sense that an election has news value. An election is an essential 
part of the democratic process. An election petition is not a suit between two 
persons, but is a p roceeding in which the constituency itself is the principal party 
interested" The same view was expressed in Harcharan Singh V. Mahendra Singh, 
AIR 1968 SC 1500. 
16. These principles have to  be kept on mind while assessing the evidence and 
coming to findings in the C3se. 
17. We now proceed to deal with the I ;sues. For the sake of convenience 
Issue No. 6 regarding maintainability of the election petition is  taken up first. 
18. It is contended by Respondent No. r that the election petition is not main· 
tainable i n  as much as the election petitioner cannot be taken to have been a can� 
didate at the election from 29 Aizawl West Constituency on the ground 
that he being a voter of a different constituency viz. 28 Aizawl East he did 
not file along with the nomination paper, nor did he produce before the Returnin� 
Officer at the time of the scrutiny of nomination papers of 29 Aizawl West Constl­
tuency, a copy of the electoral roll of 28 Aizawl East Constituency or a copy of 
the relevant part of the electoral roll or a certified <i0py \)f the relevant entries of 
such roll. It is further alleged that the petitioner was not present in the Office 
of the Returning Officer at the time of scrutiny of nomination papers on 31.3.79 
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Admittedly the election petitioner did not file along with his nomination paper any 
copy as aforesaid Section 81  of the Act says that the election petition must be 
presented by a candidate at such election. Therefore according to the Respond�nt, 
the eiection petitioner having failed to comply with the requirement of sub-section 
(5) of Section 33, his nomination was void abinitio and that he was not entitled 
to present the petition under section 8 1  of the Act. On the other hand it is the 
case of the election petitioner that though he did not file a copy uf the electoral 
ron of the constituency of which he was a voter, or the relevant part thereof or 
a certified copy of the relevant entries of such roll along with the nomination pa­
per, he appeared before the Returning Officer M 31.3.79 at the time ef scrutin) 
and produced a copy of the electoral roll of 28 Aizawl East Constituency during 
scrutiny by the Returning Officer. 
17. In the election petition under para 1,  it is stated 
that the petitioner is an elector of 29 Aizawl West. (Scheduled Tribe) 
Constituency but on 25.3.80 a petition was sobmitted by way of amendment of 
the petition with respect to the number of Constituency to which the petitIOn 
actually belongs, alleging that due to type graphical mistake in para I of the elec­
tion petition. in place of "and is an elector of No. 28 AizawJ East" 
"and is an elector of 29 Aizawl East" was written. So amendment of the 
petition was prayed for. It has been pointed out on behalf of the respondent No. I 
that no order was passed allowing the petition for amendment and that therefore 
the election petition is not maintainable on the ground that though the peti­
tioner is not an elector of 29 Aizawl West, he presented the petition as 'an elector 
of 29 Aizawl West Clnstituency. Mr. Mazumdar for the petitioner argued that 
this is merely minor technical matter and that it not being of any substantial 
nature, it should not stand in the way of adjudicating the election dispute, itself. 
He frankly pointed out that even in the amendment petition clerical mistake crept 
in as is found now with regard to naming of the paragraph of the election petition un­
der which the mi<;take was to he rectified. In place of para I which is the relavant 
para, by mistake para seven was mentioned in the amendment petition though page 
number seven in the amendment petition was co;rect. Mr. Mazumdar further 
arugged tbat for such matters the election petition cannot be thrown away because 
Respondent No. I admits in his written statement that the petitioner is an elector 
of 28 Aizawl East Constituency and that his name appears in the electoritl roll of 28 
Aizawl East Constituency. It is of course in evidence of both sides that the election 
petitioner belongs to 28 Aizawl East Constituency. Learned counsel for the petitioner 
urged that the petitioner fought the election and that he having been a candidate in 
the election h-as presented the election petition and that the only question in this res­
pect as formulated in the Issue under discussion is VYhether the petitioner being an 
elector of a different constituency complied with the requirements of sub-section 
(5) of sectiort 33 of the Act. In view of the materials on record, it does not require 
any elaboration for the finding that the petitioner belongs to 28 Aizawl East Cons­
tituency as an elector. 
18.  This leads us to the question whether the petitioner complied with the provi­
sions of section 33 (5) of the Act and if his nomination was void abinitio due 
to alleged contravention of sectian 33 (5) of the Act and whether he has any locus 
standi to call in question the election of respondent No. I and whether in view of 
tbe above, the election petition is maintainable. 

, . ' 

• 

• 
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19. In his �eposition the election petitioner states that the Returning Officer had 
a copy ?f his own of t?e �lectoral roll of 28 Aizawl Ea-st Constitutency at the time 
of �c:rutmy of tne nommatIon paper of 29 Aizawl West Constitutency and that he 
verIfIed the copy of th� el�ctoral roIl pro9�ced by the petitioner and got satisfied 
and fOllnd the �om

.
JI1atlon of the petitIOner valid. He further deposes that 

t�ere was n� ;')P]cct](:)fi from RespJndent No. 1 who was present at the 
time, of scrutmy regardmg acceptance .of petitioner's nomination paper by the Re­
turmng qfficer, nor was there any objection from any other candidate prese"t there. 
Ext. P.I IS the nomination paper of the petitioner and P,l (1) is the signature of 
the ReturnIng Officer accepting the nominaiion. In cross-examination it has not 
been challenged on behalf of respondent that the election petitioner did not produce 
any copy of the electoral roll before the Returning Officer at the time of scrutiny. 
It has been elicited in his cross examination that the petitioner did not make ,lny 
statement either in his original election petition or in the amendment petition d2ted 
25.3.80 that he produced a copy of the electoral roll before tho Returning Oflker. 
P.W. 3 Shri. Lalsangzuala who contested in 1972 elections as the candidate of 
Congress (I) from Aizawl South C�:mstituency anb got elected and who joined the 
Mizoram Ministry in 1974 and remained so till May, 1277 and who again contes­
ted the Assembly elections in 1978 as well as i n  1979 �s Bongrdss (1) nominee 
from Aizawl East Constituency but got defeated on both occassions and who Was 
GenemI Secretary of Congress (J) in 1979 claims to have been present on 3U.79 
i n  the Office of the Returning Officer at the time of the scrutiny of the nomination 
papers. H. says '" I was present during the scrutiny. I was present \ dr..ring the 
scrutiny of the nomination paper of Aizawl West Constituency. Mr. R.Thangliana 
the election petitioner produced the electoral roll of Aizawl East Constituency. It 
is No. 28 Aizawl East Constituency 

Returning Officer checked the electoral roll of Aizawl East Constitutency and he 
was satisfied and asked the persons present there if anybody had objection against 
his nomination. No objection was raised by anybody. "In the . cross-examination 
on behalf of Respondent No.1, the witness says that the scrutmy of the nonTna­
tion papers was being done number-wise and that he attenderl the office of Re­
turning Officer during scrutiny before lunch and at the time when scrutiny of no­
mination papers of 27 Constitutency was in progress. He does not rememher the 
exact number of candidates of·29 Aizawl West due to lapse of time for which h e  
also does not remember "that all the candidates were present for all constituten· 
cies". So far as he remembers many candidates were present. He did no'. repre­
sent Mr. R. Thangliana during scrutiny. But as General Secretary of the hirty, 
he remained present in the interest of the party. On the other hand Re)pondent 
No; 1 deposes "At about 2 P.M. scrutiny was held regarding my cons1itute;lcy. 
After completion of the scrutiny of 28 Aizawl ,East Constitutency, candidates of 
29 AizawI West were caHed for in the room of R.O. Out of 7 candidates of this 
constitutency 5 were present. Mr. R. Thangliana a.nd Mr. K, Zoliana of People's 
Conference Party (8) were absent". The respondent names the candidates who 
were present at the time of scrutiny and further says "Nomination papers 
were kept each in separate file. After opening the file, the R.O. enquired 
from the candidates present if any had any objection regarding any of the nomina· 
tioo papers. No candidate raised objection regarding any of the nominatio!1 papers 
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-He accepted the nomination paper and wrote some endorsement." In this cross­
examination Respondent No. 1 states "I remember all the members who wer� pre· 
sent during the scrutiny of 29 Aizawl Wesl: There were 7 l?eople .present lD !he 
room of R.O. during the scrutiny, none objected. Mr. Thanghana IS a voter of 28 
Aizawl East Constituency ...... There is no legal bar If he fulfIls other formalilles. 
The R.O. and the election officer might have had the electoral rolls with them at 
the time of scrutiny. I know Mr.' Lalsangzuala. At the time of election he was 
the Secretary of the Congress (I) Party. He was candidate in the last election 
He was a candidate from 28 Aizawl East. I do not know whether Mr. Lalsang­
zuala who was a candidate of 28 Aizawl East was present at the time of scrutiny 
of his constituency. I do not remember if he was there inside or outside the R.O's 
room. ] do not know if a Secretary of the party was entitled to remain present at 
the time of scrutiny of the nomination paper of the party candidates" He further says 
that except himself, Mr. A.B. Pakunga and Mr. K. Zoliana, the other 4 candidates 
of 29 Aizawl West were electors of other constituency. But at the time of scrutiny 
he 'Was not very serious and when the R.O. enquired as to whether the Respondent 
and others had any objection, they replied in the negative. He further states HIt 
did not strike me at the time of scrutiny that these 4 non�elector candidates had 
to go througq certain formalities". 
20. R.W. Shri.A.B. Pakbng who was one of the candidates of 29 Aizawl West 
Constituency deposes that the scrutiny of nomination papers of 29 Aizawl West 
by R.O. was taken up at about 2 P.M. on 31.3.79 one after another. He states 
that during the ,crutiny of 29 Aizawl East, the candidates of the constituency 
were present except election petitioner Mr. R.Thangliana and Mr.K. Zoliana. The 
Returning Officer took up nomination papers one after another and enquired from 
these pr�!sent if they got any objected and the nomination papers were accepted. In 
his cross�examination he states that on the day of scrutiny of nomination papers 
he went to the election office at about I P.M. when nomination papers of 26 
Assembly Constituency were being scrutined. He was waiting outside the Office of 
R.O. and does not remember of all the candidates of 29 Aizawl West were wai� 
ting o'ltside. He did not see Mr. Lalsangzuala there� Mr. Zairemthanga was stan� 
ding outside. He also saw "the other candidates of 29. Aizawl West standing out� 
side." He specifies that no candidate had electoral roll with him on that day and 
that he himself had a copy of the electoral roll for his own purpose. He also does 
not know the exact number of persons inside the RO.'s Office at I P.M. At about 
2 P.M. he entered !he Office of the R.O. being the first person to do so. The R.O. 
according to the witness took up nomination papers One by one calling the 
name of each candidate concerned and at the time of scrutiny of each 
nomination paper he ascertained from those present whether they had any objection 
and on none raising any objection the R.O. accepted nomination paper. The 
witness further states that he did not see Mr. Lalsangzuala, Ceneral Secretary 
of Congress (I) sitting inside or standing outside. 
2!. Regarding P.W Lalsangzuala.who deposes that be was present when scutiny 
of nomination papers relating to 29 Aizawl West was taken up and continued in 
the Office of R.O. Mr. Lahiri learned counsel pointed that this witness cannot be 
taken to . have been present at scrutiny of the nomination paper of the petitioner 
as section 36 of the Act excludes pr�seDce of others except those enumemted un� 
der the section at the place of scrutiny. So according to Mr. Lahiri the Returning 
Officer could not allow any person to be present in his room at the time of sern· 

• 
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tiny ot�r than those entitled to be present there under sectic,n 36 of the Act. P. 
W. 3 dld not.bel�:)flg to any cfthe categories (If nersons mentioned under section 36 
who .ar� entltleti to be .present at the time of scrutiny. But Mr. Majurnder has to say 
that If It so hapgene� tllat P.W. 3 being: General Secretary of a party was allowed­
by the R,9. to .r� n lin :)fj"ient, t1treby nothing was done which could invalidate 
J:h� act Ot, scrutmy done by tl'e R .O. Learned C'JUIlSel added that when this witness 
a�firms hIs p:"c';';>I1':e all OJth, no suggestion was put to him by the other 
side that he Was not present. From the evidence of R . W 2 .  Shri Pakunga it is 
found that PW. 3 was a candidate from 28 Aizawl East and waS 
present at the Offioe of the R.O. on 3 1 .3.79 R.W. 2 does not cate­
gorically' S]y. that the P.W. 3 was not present at the scrutiny of nomination papers 
of 29 AIVWl West in the room of R.O. Any way the evidence regarding the pre-
sence of P.W. 3 at the scrutiny cannot be brushed aside. . 

22. Mr. Majumder for the petitioner submits that when the R.O. found valid on 
his srcutiny the nomination paper of the petitioner, it has to be presumed that cJl 
formalities regarding the nomination paper were complied with inclusive of the 
provisIons of section 33 (5) of the Act. He further argues that scrutiny of nomina­
tion papers is a q Jasi�judicial function which call upon the R.O. to discharge his 
duty with high judi"ial standards. The R. O. need not record reasons for linding 
the nomination paper valid although it is there that he is to give reasons for rejecting 
a nomination paper. It has to be taken that the R.O. was quite aware of the law 
and the rules in that behalf and he acted according to the law and the fules in  
disposing of the nomination paper. There i s  no allegation of bias on  the part of 
the R.O. and therefore the natural presumption goes in favour of validity of the 
nomination paper. Nothing contrary has been made out nor is there� anything 
prima fads obvious to find the nomination paper invalid. The other candidates 
including respondent No. I and RW. 2 though they had the apportunity of raising 
objection regarding the nomination pap�r of the petitioner refrained from raising 
any objection in spite of their knowledge that the petitioner was not a voter 
of 29 Aizawl West constituency. It is therefore to be concluded that there was 
nothing objectionable regarding the nomination paper of the petitioner. 

l.t In this connection Mr. Majumdcr relied on the definition of "candidatt" 
under section 79(b) of the Act and adrlressed at the bar that if it is taken for t.he 
sake of argu�n�nt that the petitioner h-IS not been duly nominated still he is a candi. 
date fOf the purpm.e of section 81 of the Act in as much as he claims to have bef'R 
duly nominated at the election. Mr. Majumder cited Madan Singh V. Laduram 
Choudhury & Ors., Election Law Reports Vol. Xl 1955-56 wherein the Election 
Tribunal held that under section 81 of the Act read with section 79 any person who 
claims to have been a duly nominated candidate can present an eleetion petition. 
He also refelred to Dr Poul Choudhury v. State of Assam, AIR 1960 - SC 131  in 
which it was held that the acceptance of a nomination paper after scrutiny is not 
finJi or conclusive but it can be set aside; yet the acceptance of the oomination 
paper u!lder section 36(8) makes the candidate whose nomination paper is accepted 
after scrutiny a validly nominated candidate at least for the purpose of receiving 
votes at the election. That being so, the candidate who received votes at the elec­
tion has to be considered as a candidate for the purpose of sectiml 8l  of the Act. 
The submission of Mr. Majumder has force in it. 
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24. Mr. Lahiri learned counsel for the Respondent debated 11;at I-�d tte d(ction 
petitioner produced a copy of �e ,electoral roil or a relevant part the�eof cr a ce�­
tilled copy of the relevant entfles 111 the roll before the R. <? a,1 the tIme of serutI­
ny, such a copy would have been a part of Ext. Pt. 1 nornmatlOn -rape.f. But such 
a copy of the electoral roll or a certified copy of the. relevant entrl.es 10 electoral 
roll is not found along with Ext. P. 1. But Mr. MaJumder submItted that mere 
non-finding of such a copy a ttached of such " copy att�ched to Ext. P. ! docs �ot 
constitute rebuttal of the presumption that every formaltty was observed 10 scrutmy 
of the nomination pal?er of the election, petith:)l�er inclusive ?f. production ,of the 
aforesaid copy as claImed by the election pe:ltlOner. The dIctIOnary meamTlg of 
the term "produce" is "to bring forward, to bring out, to extend, to bring-forth 
etc:' It is not �ynonymous with the transitive verb "submit". 

24. Mr. Lahiri relied on Charanlal v. Sanjeeva Reddy, AIR 1978 SC 499. In 
that case election of N. Sanjeeva Reddy was challenged. But the petitioner admit­
tedly did not himself complied with the provisions of section 5(B) or section 5(C) 
of Presidential and Vice-Presidential Election Act (19521. �ection 5(B) enacts that 
each candidate shall deliver to the�Returning Officer at the place specified in this 
behalf in the public notice issued under section 5 a nomination paper completed in 
the prescribed form and subscribed by the candidate as assenting to the nomination 
and (a) in the case of Presidential election also by at-least 10 electors 
as proposers and at-least to electors as seconders. Section 5(C) provides that 
a candidate shall not be deemed to be duly nominated for the election unless he 
deposits a sum of Rs. 2500/-. The petitioner, however, admits in his petition that .� he did not deposit this sum of money as req"Jired under section S(C) of the said • 
Act. Therefore on his admission in the petition or plaint the petitioner waS not a 
candidate- either duly nominated or one who could claim to be so ncminated. 
It was held that his nomination paper was rightly rejected by the Returning Officer 
and that the petitioner had no locus standi to challenge the election of the respon­
dent. Relying on this decision Mr. Lahiri printed out that Madan Singh (supra) 
cannot prevail over the aforesaid decision of the Supreme Court. But obviously 
the two cases have diffrerent facts and circumstances. In Charanlal (supra) the • 
very nomination paper of the petitioner was rejected by the R.O. and the petitioner 
admitted in his petition that he did not comply with the provisions of section 5 (C) 
of the said Act. His nomination waS rejected by the primary authority. The 
Supreme Court rightly held that the petitioner cannot be taken to be a person who 
has been or claims to have been duly nominated as a candidate at the electilm as 
provided under the section 13(a) of the said Act. Therefore Charanlal (supra) 
cannot be invoked in aid of the submission made by Mr. Lahiri. It should not 
be omitted here that Mr. Lahid also cited P.H. Jugal Singh v.P.H. Narasibhai. 
AIR .l974 SC 951 therein it was held th.t th, provisions of section 33 (5) are of 
mandatory nature in order to satisfy the Returning Officer in the mode enacted 
by those provisions that the candidate is an elector of a different constituency and 
that non-compliance of those provisions i s  not covered by section 36 (4) ofthe Act 
Narmada Prased v. Chaganlal AIR 1969 SC 395, was also relied on by Mr.Lahiri· 
In that case it was held that compliance of so!ction 33 (5) of the Act was-not done 
by furnishing before the Returning Officer a certificate from an Officer who was 
also not proved to be- an authorised Officer regarding his being elector of another 
Constituency. In that case it was laid down that the only mode of such compliance 
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is as provided i n  the provisions of section 33 (5) of the Act. On the sa.:ne point 
Mr. Lahiri relied on Avadh Raj Singh v. Jugal Kishore Gupta, AIR 1979 SC 1 148. 

There is no doubt about the mandatory nature of the provisions of section 33 
(5) of the Act and the mode of compliance with the provisions as said therein. But 
as found above the petitioner in the instant case being an elector of 28 Aizawl 
East Constit11er.cy pI Oduced a copy of the electoral roll of 28 Aizawl Ea�;t before 
the R.O. at !be lirr:e of the scrutiny of the nominct:on paper and this part the 
petitioner has the status of a candidatt:; a"i defined under setticn 79 (b) of the Act 
and as such he has sufficient locus standi to present the petition and therefore 
the petion is maintainable. 

25. In connection with maintainability of the petition a contention was raised by 
Mr. Lahiri in that the petitioner did not conform to the proviso to section 83 (1)  
of the Act. His submission is that the affidabit sowrn by the petitioner accompa­
nying the election petition does not mention the allegations rr:ade in para 1 6  of 
the election pet:tion. The aforf'said proviso to section 83 (1)  reads " provided that 
where the petitioner alleges any corrup practice, the petition shall also be accom­
panied by an affidavit in the prescribed from in support of the allegation of such 
conupt practive and the particulars there" . Form No. 25 (Affidivit) was given 
under rule 94 (A) of Conduct oflhe Election Rules 1961 is the prescribed Form. In 
the instant case the form in which the required affidavit has been sowrn by the 
petitioner i s  found to be substantially the same as Form No. 25. But under para 
2 of the affidavit the petitioner does nvt mention para 16 of the election petition 
as to how he believes the contents of the paragraph to be true. The effec! of 
this aforesaid affidavit regarding para 16 of the petition is that it falls under the 
category of his submissions before the Court. Mr. Majumder however has to say 
that the principal allegations of corrupt practice committed by the Respondent No. 
1 are appeal given to pubJic to vote against Congress (I) on the ground of its being 
a non-M'izo organisation and giving. false symbol in the dummy ballot paper and 
that details of these corrupt practice. and their particulars are given in paras 8 to 
1 5  of the election petition and that para 16  of the petition begins \\ith the ,vords· 
.. Thar thus . . . . . • , which means it is a submission based on what have been 
stated in  the foregoing paragraphs viz. para 8 to 15. Learned counsel also :nged 
that what matters is the substance and not the form. Mr. Majumder c;ted K.M. 
Mani v, P.J. Antony, AIR 1979 SC 234 in support cf his submission that the 
context total and totallity of the allegations have to be taken !Dto considetation i n  
order to appreciate the substance of the dispute involved. In the cited case it 
was found that paragraphs 3 to 6 of the Election petition in the case were verified 
by the election petitioner as true to his information. In the written sta!ement of 
the respondent the objection was that "The affidavit filed along with the petition 
(was) not in conformity with, the requirements of law. " It was decided in thHt ca­
se that verification of the aforsaid paragraphs of the election petition was dene i n  
the aforsaid manner quite i n  conformity with the proviso to section 83 (I) and 
rule 94 A and Form 25 of the Conduct of Election Rules 1961. 1n the instant 
case paragraph 16 of the election petitioner has been found to have been verified as 
submission of the eleetion petitioner. Therefore it is found that the law in that 
behalf has b::-en complied with in the aforsaid manner. In view of the discdssion 
made above, Issue No. 6 is answered in favour of the election petitioner. 
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26. The next Issue which can be takec up conveniently for decision is Issue 1\0. 
1. This issue is whether appeals were �.;sued by respondent No. l .in  dummy 
ballot papers exhorting the vote�'s not to vote for the petitioner on 
the ground that his party (the petitioner�s party) was a non-tribal org,lDisation and 
"hether it was done for the purpose of prejudicially affecting tte prospect of the 
petitioner's election and if so whether it amounted to corrupt practice under section 
123 of the Representation of the People's Act, 1951 . 

27. Now, admittedly in the dummy bdllot papers allegedly issued in 29 Aizawl 
West by/on behalf of respondent No. I (Ext. P. 4) contain an appeal in the name 
of respondent No. 1 ;  but it does not contain any appeal to the voters on any com­
munal or racial ground. It is written in Mizo language and when translated into 
English it is found to be and innocuous Appeal to the voters asking them to vote 
for the candidate. The statement of the appeal contained a few words of justifica­
tion for voting in his favour. The eleeton petitioner in his evidence admits. "Tbe 
appeal is a plain one by respondent No. 1 for voting in his favour. There is no­
thing serious". Mr. Majumder urged that although the words "his dummy ballot 
papers" occur in the Issue as framed, the Issue in substance means the appeal as 
found in Ext. P. 6 i.e. the appeal issued in the IIame of Mawi's Mother (In the 
reverse side of the dummy ballot paper issued in the name of Brig. Sailo of People's 
Conference PaTty, a candidate of 27 Aizawl North Constituency. Learned counsel de­
bated tbat the petitioner's allegations is tbat appeal was made to voters not to vote for 
Congress (I) on the ground that it is a non-Mizo organisation and that tbis appeal 
was issued in the name of Mawi's Mother in the dummy ballot paper of Brig. Sailo 
and distributed in 27 Aizawl North and that 27 Aizawl North and 29 Aizawl West 
Constituencies being contiguous to each othr.r, those dummy ballot papers c,ontai­
ning the Mawj's Mother appeal "found their way" into 29 Aizawl West Consti­
tuency. This dummy ballot papers according to the learned counsel were distri­
buted in 29 Aizawl East Constituency by the workers and partymen or P.C.P. which 
was done in the interest of respon dent No. I and as such the circumstances show 
that there waS consent of respondent No. 1 in di�tributing such dummy baUot pa­
pers. J\.fr. Majumder laid much stress on the framing of the Issue and that if the 
Issue has to be taken to imply the dummy ballot paper of respondent No. I, it was 
for no worth in as much as it is clear that the dummy ballot paper of respondent 
No. 1 .  contained no communal appeal. In the context of the Issue which has not 
been framed for nothing, but which came into existence fOl meeting with an an· 
swer in that behalf, Mr. Majumder likes to pursuade the Court to accept. his ver­
sion of the Issue which means the dummy ballot papers containing the 
appeal of Mawi's Mother. Mr. LahiTi on the other hand submitted 
that the clear language of the Issue cannot be p'Jt under strain so as to include 
something which is not there in �he Issue. The Issue. according to 
him. has been framed in the context of the allegations of the election petition and 
that the dummy ballot paper of Respondent No. I is clearly stated there. He also 
argued that the provisions of section 83 of the Act have not been complied with 
regard to the dummy ballot paper containing the appeal of Mawi's Mother. The 
election petition, according to him is devoid of fiLets and particulars of alleged· cor­
rupt practice by way of appeal on communal or racial ground. He referred to pa­
ragraph 8 of the election petition in which it is stated " Appeals were issued not 
to vote for the petitioner on the ground that his party was a non-tribal organisa-
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tion and he did this for the purpose of prejudicially affecling lhe prospect of the 
petitioner's election" etc. Under paragraph I I  the averment is that "The dummy 
ballot papers distributed in the petitioner's constituency viz 29 Aizawl Wfst As· 
sembly Constituency contained an appeal by Respondent No. I Shri Zairemthhanga 
aDd obviously dummy ballot papers along with appeal were issued by respondent 
No l.  and his party. It was also issued with the consent and kno\\ledge of Res­
pondent No. 1 himself and it was his workers and partymen who distributed the 
same among the voters going from house to house", and in paragrarh 17 of the 
petition it is stated. "Tha t the dummy ballot papers which were publish'd and 
distributed by the People's Conference Party, particularly in No. 27 Aizawl North 
(ST) Assembly Constituency, which constituency is contiguous to the petitioner's 
constituency, same appeals found their way into the constituency of th� petitioner, 
i.e. No. 29 Atzawl West (ST) Constituency contained an appeal on the reverse side 
by one Mawi's Mother. In the said appeal the party of which the petitioner was a 
candidate viz. the Cona-ress Party was described as a non-tribal organisation" /etc. It 
is therefore found as pointed out by Mr. Lahid that the facts and particulars "in 
the petition aro out sufficient so far as the ballot paper bearing the appeal of 
Mawi's Mother is concerned. 

28. It is found that according to the petitioner the offiensive appeal is contained 
by Ext. P. 6 (Mawi's Mother appeal). But neither the election petition Dar the evi­
dence on the side of the petitioner disc10se the requisite facts and particulars as to 
who distributed such ballot papers in 29 Aizawl North and in what panicular 
places and when. The facts are not sufficient for deducting any inference under 
section 100 (I) (b) and/or (d) of the Act. 

29. It is therefore found that the first Issu� must go in favour of the respondents 
as there is no offensive appeal in the dummy ballot paper of Respondent No. I. 
The issue is therefore answered in favour of Respondent No. 1 .  

' 

30 We now proceed to deal with the crucial controversy which runs 
through the remaining Issues. VIZ. Issue Nos. 2, 4 and 5 which 
are being taken up together decision as it is thought to be convenient. 

31.  The Isssues together boil down to the following questions ; (I) whether the 
dummy ballot paper (Ext. P, 4) allegedly issued by/or on behalf of Respondent 
No. I contain, wrong and false symbol of Congress (I) being .the symbol allotted 
to the petitioner, (2) whether the dummy ballot paper was published by Respondent 
No. 1 or his election agent or any other agent or other person with his consent 
or with the consent of his election a8ent, (3) whether this dummy ballot paper \\las 
published and circulated in 29 Aizawl West Constituency, (4) whether Respondent 
No. I thereby took to currupt practice or whether the result of the election in so far 
as it concerns the returned candidate viz. Respondent No. 1 has been materially 
effected by pUblication and circulation of the dummy ballot paper in the interest 
of the returned candidate by and agent other than the election agent of respondent. 
No. I.  

32. The gravamen of the election petitioner is corrupt practice as envfsaged under 
section 123 (4) of the Act in connection with his candidature perpetrated by/on 
behalf of the contesting re!pondent with his consent. Sub-section 4 of section 123 
of the Act requires (I) that there should be publication of any statement of fact 
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by • candidat.; (1) tbat tb' fact is false ; (3) tbe candidate believes it to be false 
alld does not beliove it to be true; (4) the statement is in relation to the 
candidature of another candidate ; and (5) tbe said statement is one being 
reasonably calculated to prejudice tbe prospects of tbe other candidate's election. 
The onus on an election petitioner under section 1 23 (4) of the Act is to show that 
a statement of fact was publisbed by a candidate or his agent or by any other 
person with the consent of the candidate or his election agent (Nepal Chandra Roy 
v. Netai Chandra Das & Ors., AIR 1971 (3) SCC 303) 

33. Firstly it has to be decided whether the dummy ballot paper, Ext. 4, contains 
a wrong and false symbol of Congress (I). It is stated under paragraph 5 of the 
election petition that the election symbol of the petitioner was "a upright hand 
facing palm" which is the official symbol of Indian National Congress (I). The same 
is stated under para 7 of the petition. But under paragraph 9 of the election pe­
tition tho Congress (I) symbol is stated to be "Upright right hand faCing pahn". Un­
der paragraph 9 of the election petition it is also stated that the quostioned dummy 
baUot paper depicted Congress (I) symbol as a "left hand glove horizontally 
placed with a trident mark in the middle against the name of the petitioner." Ext. 
P. 4 is the dummy ballot paper under controve"y. The arguments on behalf "f 
the election petitioner are that the symbol "hand" allotted to the Congress (I) Party out 
of the national reserved symbols is one of upright right hand facing palm as given in Ext. 
P. 5 being list of free and national reserved symbols supplied by the Election Officer, 
and that in Ext. P. 4. not only the position of the "hand" has been placed hori­
zontally but also the real "hand" has been depicted in a way resembling a hand 
glove. Over and above that, the trident mark has been impressed in the ntiddle 
of the "hand". These facts according to Mr. Majumder, constitute a distorted. 
wrong and false symbol of Congress (I) Party which has been done only to mis­
lead the voters and harm the election prospect of the election petitioner. Mr. Lahi­
ri on the other hand has to say that what has been allotted as symbol to Indian 
National Co"ogress (I) is a "hand" without description of the position of the "hand" . 
He referred to Ed. P. I which is the nomination paper of the election petitioner . 
In this paper in the part for declaration of the petitioner, it is there that "The 
symbol I have chosen in order of preference - (i) Hand, (ii) X, (iii) X". He also 
referred to lists of political parties and symbols in relation to elections in all par­
liamentary and Assembly CO{lstituencies other than the assembly constituencies in 
the State of Jammu & Kashmir under Notification No. 56/79 dated 28th September 
1979 Part II section 3 (ii), dated 28.9.79 wherein under Table I the reserved symbol 
of Indian National Congress (I) is stated to be '·hand" . Th, position or description 
of "hand" is not given in the table. Mr. Lahiri therefore pressed the point that 
what has been allotted to Indian National Congress (I) is "hand" simpliciter without 
any description of the position or side of hand. 

Therefore Mr. Lahiri would say that placing the "hand" in a horizantal position 
is neither ·wrong nor false representation of "hand" being the Congress (1) symbol. 
As regards it looking like a hand glove rather than genuine hand, the submission 
of Mr. Lahiri is that the five fingers of tbe hand are distinctly and separately visi­
ble as their natural exposition and that the palm is also qUite visible and that what 
has been alleged as trident in the middle of the palm is nothing but a part of the 
palm linings. This being so, according to Mr. Lahiri, the "hand" as shown in the 
aummy ballot paper is a genuine one and not a false and wroog symbol. 

• 
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34. But it is common knowledge springing from the prudence of an ordinary man 
of the society that a definite visible position of a physical thing has to be adopted 
in order to serve the distinct purpose for which it is taken. In this view of the 
ordinary Course of human behaviour in a civilised society we have to find as to 
what particular position of the symbol of hand in the present case has been taken 
up by the persons or parties concerned. There is no dispute about the symbol of 
Congress (I) being a "hand" of man. The meaning of the band as given in tbe 
Webster's 3rd International Dictionery (Unabridged) Vol. 1 is "the terminal part 
of the vertebrate fore limb when modified (as in man) as a grasping organ being 
made up of wrist meta carpus, terminal fingers and opposite thumb or of these 
parts excluding the wrist and exhihiting unusual mobility, flexibility both of the 
digits and the whole organ". The "hand" as given in Ext. P. 5 (list of free 
symbols and national reserved symbols) which was supplied by the Election Officer 
has the position of one of upright right hand facing palm. This sbows that the 
"band" as Congress (1) symbol has been given and accepted in a position as given 
by the Election Officer vide Ext. P. 5. The crux of the matter is what has been 
adopted and accepted in the concerned circles. This position and visual represen­
tation of the "hand" was accepted by the party to whom it was allotted and also 
t�s was known to other parties as well as the voters. The concerned part)! pub­
lIshed and circulated this position and visual representation of "hand" among the 
voters. It has therefore to be presumed and I think there is no alternative hypo­
thesis in this respect that this position (upright right hand facing palm) of "hand" 
is one which was adopted as the Congress (I) symbol. 
35. On this point the evidence on record has to be taken into consideration. P.W. 
2 election petitioner Mr. R. Thanglian, deposes "My symbol was upnght right 
hand facing palm. As candidates do I also started campaigning in my constituen· 
cy", Again he says "My symbol was shown wrongly in the dummy ballot paper 
I.e. left hand glove was horizontally placed with a trident mark in the middle. 
That was confusing and misleading for the voters" He states that Ext. P.  5 con­
tains this correct symbol marked Ext. P. 5 (I). In his cross-examination, be fur­
ther states that Indian National Congress (I) was allocated "hand" 
whic� was '·practically upright right hand facing palm" . He continues "] did 
publIsh my pamphlet contaming my Symbol. I tried to educate my electors about 
my symbol asking them to vote fOf Congress (I). The pamp�\ets ",ere WIdely 
dlstnbuted 10 the Constituency" . P. W. 3, Lalsangzua\a states On lDspeCtion I 
discovered that the dummy ballot paper was printed on wbite paper. and that Cong­
ress symbol was falsely depicted as hand glove in a honzontal POSItIon lDstead of 
a band in upright right facing palm position". He further says that "the symbol 
of Congress candidate as printed 011 the dummy ballot paper 18 sbown as h�nd 
glove in horizontal position, whereas the symbol of Congress-I Party, a recogmsed 
national party is a hand in the upright position with palm. The symbol of Cong­
ress party in the dummy ballot paper was not possibly tbe symbol of Congress Party" 
His further statement is that false publication of Congress symbol III 
the dummy ballot paper bad asverse effect on tbe voters particularly the illitera\e 
voters and that Mr. R. Thangliana was defeated mainly because of the false pub"­
cation of Congress symbol by the People's Conference Party and t.at Mr. Zairem­
tbanga won because this created great confusion among the voters 1 n the cross­
examination he further states that Ext, P. 4 contained a glove of ban� in horizon­
tal poSition with seperate shape of each finger and thumb and that if looked lik. 
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a glove, llot like hand of man and Ihal Ihe ,i2' of wrist was not proportionate to 
the hand wherefor it looked like a glove. P.W. 4 Shri Thanchuama says 
"They distributed paper showing false symbol of Congress (I). Right hand ill up­
right position facing palm is tbe symbol of Congress (I). One left hand glove in 
horizontal postion was shown in the papers distributed as Congress (I) symbol. 
That is the reason why we lost in the election." He continues H I distributed 
leaflets published by Mr. R. Thangliana in the public meeting. Those leaflets con­
tained the correct symbol of Congress (I)." P.W. 5 Shri R. Zadawla depo.es that 
he was given two dummy ballot papers by the girls who were distributing them 
on behalf of Respondent No. I, and that he looked into the dummy ballot papers 
and found that Congr .. s (I) symbol was shown in both the papers as hand glove 
in horizontal position. In the cross-examination he further states that the symbol 
of his party Congress (I) was upright right hand. He also says " In the dummy 
ballot paper given to me by the lady workers of People's Conference Party con­
tained no fingers in the glove shown in the dummy ballot papers " Says he 
" though no fingers were seen it was clearly indentified as a glove. There were 
marks of fingers but actual fingers were not seen. There was picture of 5 fingers 
in the glove." 
36. Respondent No. I Mr. Zairemthanga categorically states in his evidence "the 
hand shown in Ext. P. (4) is not the symbol of Congress (I) and_I have not Seen 
such symbol in India of Congress (I). Congress (I) symbol is hand in upright posi­
tion facing' palm," R.W. 2 Shri A.V. Pakunga says "I knew it was simply hand. 
Only I knew that the symbol was hand." R.W. 7 Mr. C. RamIiana and R,W. 8 
Mr. Thangthuama also affirm that the symbol of Congress (I) was upright hand 
facing palm. 
37. . It was argued for the respondent that all the PWs being Congress members 
are mtere,ted withnesses and that this devalues the credence of their evidence, But 
such evidence cannot be thrown away only on this ac�ount. In Birbal Singh v. 
Keder Nath, AIR 1977 SC I, it was laid down that interested witnesses are not 
necessarily false witnesses and that the evidence of such witnesses must be sub­
jected to closer scrutiny. The witnesses in this case have been subjected to lengthy 
cross-examination and nothing was elicited which could render their evidence 
unworthy of acceptance. The contemporary document Ext. P. 5 corroborates 
their eyidence on this point. Mere political affiliation is no ground to think that 
the . WItnesses have no interest in telling the truth. There has been no sug­
gestIOn on the part of the respondents that Ext. P. 4 or P. 6 contained correct 
symbol of the Congress (Il Party. There is no statement in the written 
statement or in the evidence of the R. Ws that what has been displayed as Cong­
ress (I) symbol in Ext P. 4jP,6 was correct symbol of Congress (I), In view of 
the aforesaid discussion I find that the only inference that can be drawn in 
this respect is that the Congress (I) symbol was upright right hand 
facing palm and that Ext. p, 4jP.6 contained wrong and false symbol of Congress 
(I) .It IS to be noted . that Mr. Lahiri on behalf of the respondents arl:ued that a 
-portIOn of, the depoSl!Jon of Respondent Mr. Zalremlhanga should not be picked 
-0 ut of his entire deposition to ascribe such admission of the symbol to him with-
out taking the eyidence in its entirely. But Mr. Zairemthanga is ambiguous and 
categorical in this statement of his evidence which is separable from the· rest of his 
deposition. The evid�nce for the election petitioner together with the statement of 
Mr. Zauemthan,a a' well as of RWs 7 and 8 01\ thjs ' poil\\ and other circumstan. 
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ces tuken together po.ntedJy and unerringly show that the inference as reg;)rds \\0 1  ong 
and false reprcs':'ntation of Congress (I) symbol i n  Ext. P. 4 is a compelling one 
without scop::- of <111y other laternative conclusion. This wrong and false syrnbol 
was printed and pubLsbed in relation to the election petitioner's candidatl're. 

38. T�e nex! question is whether this dummy buDot paper (Ext. PA) \\o 8 S  publish� 
ed and clrc'lJated in 29 Aizawl -West Constituency in order to prejudice the election 
propects of the petitioner and if so \\ hethere it was done with the consent of the re� 
turned candidate or his electi0n agerd or, whether such publication falls Lnder the 
mischief of se�tion 100( 1 )  (d) of the Act. 

. 

39. · Numcrom authorities on both sides were cited during the course' of very 
able argument" advanced by le:uned counsels of both sidts on these points. and 
those Jut,horitit's spell out certain tests' of proof in ca"es like the present one. ' A­
mong the cited cases are Haji C.H. Mahamrnad Koya Y. T.K.S.N.A. Muthu K oya, 
AIR 1979 se 1 54; Sultln Salahuddin Owasi v. Mahammed Usman Shabee, AIR 
1980 (3) sec 28 1 ;  B.Raja�opaI0 Rama v.  N.O.Ranga, AIR 1971 se 267 M. Na­
rayan Rao v. G. Vanketa Reddy AIR 1977 se 208. 

40. The one golden thread inter alia that WI.S through all these decisior's is thai' 
the onus of proof of corrupt practice in an election case lies on the party alleging 
the: corrupt practice. It  must at the same time be proved beyond reasonable d-Jubt 
as in the case of a criminal charge. However, in M. Narayan Rao (supra) it was 
held " That tl:c charge -of commission of ·corrupt practice has to be proved l:eyond 
doubt like a <:riminal charge or guasi criminal charge; but not exactly in the ' 
manner of establishing the guilt in a criminal prosecution giving the opprlunit) to 
the accused to keep- mum. The charge. has to be proved on appreisal of the 
evidence adduc,d by hoth sides specially by the elect!On p,titioner." 

41 .  It  is the petitioner's case that thc dummy ballot paper (Ext. P. · 4) was printed at  
the Hnamte Press, Aizawl and tnat the owner of the press and printer at  
the relevant time was member of the- People's Conference Party. But this narl11 tion 
is not found in the election petition. The election petitioner says in his cieposltion 
"On seei�g the dummy ballot paper I say that it was printed at the Hnamte Press, 
Aizawl. According to me i t  should have been printed and published by respondent 
No. I because on top! of the paper there is an appeal in his name to the People." 
In Prabhu Naravan v.A.K. Srivastava, AIR 1975 se 968, it was held "the Jnly 
charge made in the p0tition was the charge of publication of the pamphlets and 
not their printing. Any evidence regarding the printing was relied 
upon only to corroborate the evidence regarding distribution ' of 
the pamphlets. I t  is obvious that when section 123 (4) speaks of publication, it 
means distribution. Moreover, printing ('If the pamphlets would not fall under sec­
tion 123 (4). Therefore the failure to give particulars of printing cannct lead t o  
the dism issal o f  the petition. "It transpires from the evidence that a prest, of 
the name of H namte Press was existing in Aizawl and that the propridor Mr. 
Hnamte had };is political affiliation with the People's Conference Party. There ap· 
pears to be no reason to '  think that such printing of Ext. P. 4 was done SUffl!pti. 
tiously in any other pre�s displaying the name of Hnamte Press and the name of 
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,Mr. Zairemthanga therein in order Co place the proprietor of Hnamte Press aDd 
respondent No. 1 in embrarrassment. R.W. 3 Lalbeiseii, daughter of G.L. Hnamte 
affirms the existence of the Press in Aizawl at the relevant time. There is 00 
doubt that Ext. P 4 dummy ballot paper was printed at the Hnamte Press. 

42. Now the question of publication and distribution of the cffensive dummy balM 
lot paper in 29 Aizawl West constituency is taken up. In P,abhunara}an 'supra) 
it was held that the publication as used under section 123 (4) or tlte Act means 
'distribution: In S.N. Balaktishna v. Fernatdes, AIR 1969 SC 1201 it was laid down 
that the petitioner may prove a corrupt practice by the candidate himself or his 
election agent or some one with the consent of the candidate or .his election agent 
in which case he need not establish what the result of the election would have 
been without the corrupt practice. If the petitioner does not pro\e 1};e corrupt 
practice by the candidate or his_ election agent or any other pen Oli with the con� 
senl of the returned candidate or his election agent, but relies on a corrupt prac­
tice committed by an agent other than an election .agent he must additionally prove 
how the corrupt practice affected the result of the poll. Unless he proves the con­
sent to the commission of .the corrupt practice on the part of the candidate or 
his election agent he must face this additional bUrden. 

, , 

• 

43. In the election petition the petitioner states that on 25 4.79 one Shri R. 
Sangkhuma of Khada whIch falis Within 29 Aizawl West, passed over to him 
copies of dummy ballot papers and that on examination of the dummy ballot 
papers he found that as against his:lname a wrong electicn symbol bad been 
shown which was left hand glove hori2ontally placed with trident in the middle -, . 
as the symbol of the petitioner against his name in the durrmy ballot paper. 
But Shri R. Sangkhuma has not heen examined as witness. It is further stated 
in the petition that on being informed by Bawit\uanga, a Congress caudidate for 
the assembly seat in 27 Aizawl North Constituency that similar offensive dum­
my ballot papers "ere distributed in 27 Aizawl North, General Secretary of the 
Congress Party Shri Lalsangzuala took ,up the matter with the Returning 
Officer, Aizawl Distrkt and that the Returning OIiIcer advi,ed the 
General Secretary to file election petition after the election. It is futher stated that 
Mr. Lalsangzuala submitted a written complaint in that hehalf to the Returning 
Officer but tbat was not accepted. In the petition it is stated that on 25.4.71} the 
offensive dummy ballot paper was distrihuted among the voters i n  the Khatla 
Bungkawn area which covers three villages having 3056 voters therein. The name> 
of 4 ladies who distributed the dummy ballot papers are menticred in the �etition 
wherein 4 witnesses to such distIibution have also been named, but only One of them 
viz. Shri R. Zadawla was examined as P.W.S. Next it is stated in the 
petition that on 27. 4. 79 being the date of election in 29 Aiz."l West. dummy 
ballot papers were distributed in Tuikual area by Shri Thangthuama and 
Shri C. Ramliana, Shri Thangchnama, President Village Council, Tuikual and Shri 
La�uma of Tuikual (D) were witnesses to such distribution of the offensive dummy 
ballot paper. It is also averted in the petition that such dummy ballot papers were 
hung in the Public Notice Boards which was seen by said President of the Village 
Council. Under para 19 of the petition it-is stated "After causing disttibution and 
wide circulation of the dummy ballot papers, the R""pondent No. 1 and his party 

, workers and agents came to rea1ise the mistake of them and 80 as a last minute 

• 

• 

moye they issued a letter to the Assistant Relurning Officer under which the subject -
was shown as information regarding publiQltion and withdrawal oUeques( to voters. In .J-
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this letter the President of the P"rty Shri D.P. Liankaia on 25.4 79 deeply regret ted the 
matter and sent the Information to the Ass.stant Returning Officer." 1 his letter 
according to the petitioner however' did not counter-baIarJce the prejudicial (:ffect 
caused to the election prospect of the petitioner. 
44. Respondent No. 1 in his written statement denied the allegations of printing 
and publishing the offensive du!',my ballot po per s, but sa)s "Even if Jny such 
dummy ballot papers were pubhshed the same was done without the knowkdge, 
consent and conniv'mce of the respondent No.1 . In any event purpoted circulation 
of dummy ballot papers C<1n never be reasonably calculated to prejudice the pros­
pect of the election petitioner'" (para 14). Again he says 'lOder para 16 of the writ­
ten statement" At any rate' even if any such distJibution was made, the 'lame did 
not cause any prejudice to the election petitioner." Under pal3 26, the respondent 
'(ates that Mr. Liankaia was merely the President of the KhatI. P.c.P. Unit which 
is nothing but a village unit and that the alleged letter dated 25.4.79 "as written 
to the Assistant Returning Officer by him _ on his 0\\ n rnd without authority and 
knowledge and consent of the resrondent or his agen t and that even lhe Kllatla 
Village unit of the Party did not authorise him to write such letter. 
45. Mr. �lajllmder referred to N. Bimala· Debi v. K. Madhusudhan Reddy, AIR 
1975 SC 11 35 and stressed that the respondent has made ' dubious 
pleadings in the written statement with relation to the eileg.ations in 
the petition. In the aforesaid ca,e it was held that the Respondent cannot be 
allowed to draft his pleadings in a dubious way and try to shape either hi s 
evidence or hi' arguments 10 suit either theory. Mr. MajuDlder argued th •. t such 
dubious pleadings as referred to above mean the admission of the connected allega­
tions. But in the last analysis i t  is found t4at the respondent can pot he charged 
with duplicity in his pleadings. His case is thaI to hi, knowledge and witb his 
consent no such dummy ballot papers as alleged in the petition were publisbed and 
distlibuted and that even if. these \\ere published and dlstributed, he had no know­
lege of or consent to or connectibn with such publication and distribution. These 
two lines of approach do not dislodge each other. Learned counsel for the peti­
tioner also referred to tbe pleadings of the respondent saying that the pleadings 
suffer from the vice of liontraverse. But 1 find that so far as the main allega­
tions are concerned, these have been substantially traversed by the pleading� of 
the respondent. 
46. The election pe�i'tioner :r;eIies on the following things to prove pUblication 
aod distribution of the offending dummy ballot papers in 29 Aizawl West 
Constituency on 25th and 2"ith of April, 1979, (I) the oral evidence; (2) com­
plaint filed by Mr. Lalsangzuala, General-Secretary of Congress (I) Party to the 
Asistant Returning Officer; (3) letter of regret written by Mr. LiaDkaia. Presi · 
dent of Kbatla P.c.P. Unit, (4) printing of the dummy ballet paper in 
the Hnamte Press, as weB as (5) documentary evrdence. 
47. P.W . 2  is the election petitioner Mr. R. ThangIiana who says that Mr. R. 
Sangkhuma showed him a dummy baBot paper on 25th April at ahout 10 A.M. 
He did not take any serious view of this, but in the following morning while 
he was sitting in the Congress (I) Office. Mr. Zadawl. came there and told the 
petitioner about similar dummy ballot papers. There were some other le2ders 
of Congress (I) in tbat. Office at the time. All of them checked the dummy 
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ballot papers and found inter alia that the wrong symbol of Congress (I) was 
shown in tho�e dt,rr,my ballot papers. The wItness further- states that the Ge­
neral Secretary Mr. Lalsangzuala told him that he had already taken up the matter of 
wrong dummy ballot paper with t11e Returning Officer a?d t(t(d to slibm�t a 
written complaint to him and that the Returning Officer did not accept the written 
complaint. The witness identifies Ext. P •. 4 dummy ballot paper. On 28th April 
after the election at about 4 P.M. Mr. Thanthuarr" P.W. 4 came to the Cong­
ress (Il Office with copies of tbe same dummy ballot p.pers and told him that he 
had received the dummy ballot papers from. Mr. Thangchuama a P.e. Party WOl­
ker and that he had coloected tbe dummy ballot papers, one from 
Mr. C. Ramliana,' P.c.P. worker of Tuikual village and that Mr. C. Ramliana ill . 
bis, . turn collected the dummy ballot papers from one Mr. Lalkhu:n'l in 
the morning of 27th April. The witness further states that Mr. Thanchuama had 
a quarrel over the dummy ballot papers with the People's Conference 
.Party workers, The witness deposes that he published' his 
own pamphlets - containirlg his symbol and tried to educate the electors. 
about his symbol asking tbem to vote for Congress (I). But the witness (election 
petitioner) did not himself see any distribution of the offending dummy ballot pa­
pers in the constituency. P. W. 3 is Mr. Lalsangzuala, General Secretary of Cong� 
ress (I) at the relevant tirr',e who deposes that ':le came to know from his party wor� 
kers that the People�s Conference 'Party workers \\.'er� distributing extensively dum­
my ballot papers and that a few days before the election day he found in Khatla 
,dummy ballot papers. But he does not name hi6 party workers from whom he 
learnt thereabout. On 23rd April 79 one of his �ecretaries Mr. Br.'\\'itluanga Who 
was a candidate from A'zawl North Constituellcy brought a dummy ballot paPer 
issued by Brig. T. Sailo, People's Conference Parts c<lndidate fI om the same con­
stituency and complained that the Congress symbol was falsely printed therein. p n  
'inspection the witness saw that wrong and falseo-Congress (I) sym bol v.as printed 

-� -
• 

on the dummy ballot papers. He also found nany other illegalities in the dummy 
ballot paper He found also a communal appeal contained in the reverse side of 
the dummy ballot paper in the name of one Nlawi's Mo\her which of course does 
.not concern us here. the witness prepared a com')iaint report and took it along 
with dummy ballot paper to the Returning Officer personally. The Returning 
Officer told him that he could not do any thing and that the witness could 
submit election petition after alection. The Returning Officer did not accept 
the complaint. Ext. . P. 7 is the copy of the complaint report. The witness 
C(Jrroborates the statement of P,W. 2 as to v,hat happened in the Congress (I) 
Office on 26th April as regards the dummy ballot paper. As there was very little 
time left before the poll, the witness advised others of his party to discuss the 
matter after the election and that there was no time for disp�1ling the confusion 
created to the voters by the dummy bllllot papers. The witness also identifies Ext 

• 

P. 4 dummy b�llot paper saying that it contains a v..rong and false publication of 
Congress (I) sumbol in the dummy ballot paper had most adverse affect on the 
voters- p3!ticularly the illiterate voters. He came to know from Mr! R. Zadawla that 
a letter of regret was sent to the Assistant Retl1rninJ! Officer by the People's Con­
ference Party Unit of Khatla. The witness however did not see himself the distri­
bution of dummy ballot papers. He did- not make any enquiry from the H*a,mte 
Press .. <to tho dummy ballot paper. He could not himself get a Single copy' of 
the dummy ballot paper on enquiry from his party ;;orkers. lI-

• 

, 
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48. P.W. 4, Shri Thangchuama was a member of the Aizawl District Congress Committee a!1d also <I: village council President of Tuikual. He worked for Cong­ress (I) candIdate dUring the Assembly election of 1979 in 29 Aizawl West Con­slItuency. He vlSlled all the villages except a few which lay in the south of 29 Alzawl West and . arranged for publ�c meeting. He also participated in 
door to doo,r campaIgn for Congress (1) .10 the sa!d ,

constituency and di5tributed 
leaflets published by Congress (I). Dunng campalgnmg he was preceeding from 
Tu�kual to Luangmual and on way saw Mr. Zairemthanga, Respondent No. 1 
domg house to house campaigning at Vaivakawn and also saw workers of People's 
Conference Party d�ing house to house campaigning and distributing pamphlets 
and leaflets. Accordmg �o the witness they were distributing papers showing wrung 
symbol of Congress (I) I. e. one left hand glove in horiZontal position in place of 
right hand in upright position facing palm which is the symbol of Congress (I). 
On the day of election he went to Tuikual polling station at about 7 A.M. to 
cast his vote there. On way he saw papers showing wrong symbol of Congress 
(I) which were displayed and hung all about those places. He saw those papers 
hanging in notice boards, fences and hill sides. At the polling booth, says he <'we 
had not arguments with the workers of People's Conference Party about those 
papers. On the question of displaying wrong symbol of Congress (I), we were ve­
ry much disappointed and told them that We will go to law. At this time Mr. 
Zairemthanga appeared there "Although this witness was at the poIling booth 
from morning till 3 P.M., he does not say what Mr. Zairemthanga did thereafter. He 
identified Ext. P. 4 and says that he saw similar dummy ballot papers in Tuikual 
area and that those papers contained symbol like Ext. P ,  4 against the name of 
the election petitioner. On 28th April, he went to Congress Office and handed 
over two dummy banot papers to Mr. Thangliana which he collected On the day of 
election. Of the three dummy ballot papers which he collected, one was hanging 
somewhere and the second one was given to him by Mr. Thangthuama, a People's 
Conference Party worker and the third one was collected by him from Lakhuma who 
had collected it from C. Ramliana. In the cross-examination he says he gave two 

• 
copies of dummy ballot paper to Mr. Thanthuama on 28th April. When he han­
ded over the dummy ballot paper containing Mawi's Mother appeal to Mr. Lal­
sangzuala on 28th April, the latter told him that he had already summil ted one 
complaint. P.W. 5 Shri R. Zadawla was an Executive Member of the District 
Congress Committee and General Secretary of Block Congress of Aizawl West 
Constituency and also Secretary of Khatla Unit of Congress (I). In the elections 
of '79 he worked for Congress (I) ca"didate at .Khatla and Bungkawn within 29 
Aizawl West. He and other workers of Congress (I) organised public meeting, con­
ducted house to house campaign and distributed symbol of election petition in the 
first part of ApriI/79. He saw the workers of People's Conference Party distrihu­
ting dummy ballot papers and names those distributors who are - (1) Tlangengi, 
daughter of Liankaia (President of Khatla Unit, PCP), (2) Zodinpuii Sailo. daugh­
ter of Khatla Unit Committee Member of PCP. (3) Lalkrosthangi, daughter of 
Zatianga, Treasurer of PCP, Khatla U nit, and (4) Lalbeiseii, daughter of G.L. 
Hnamte. owner of Hnamte Press. Those ladies distributed dummy ballot pap0fS 
at Khatla and Bungkawn on 25th April/79 morning. These ladies were distribu­
ting those dummy ballot papers while the witness and others of his party were 
distributing symbol of the election petitioner. It is the evidence of the witness 

... that those lady workers gave their dummy bollot papers to the witness and 
others of his party jokingly telling them to vote for their party although the 
witness and others belonged to a Vai Pawl Party. The witness and others aho gave 
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their leaflets containing the symbol of Mr. Thangli�na to those lad� workers telling 

them to vote for them. This was done by them ]okmgly. The wItness was gIven 

two dummy ballot papers by those girls. On looking into the dummy ballot I?apers 
the witness saw the Congress (I) symbol havmg been shown as hand glove �n ho­

rizontal position. In one of those dummy ballot papers he saw an appeal 10 the 
Dame of Mawi's Mother. On 28th April the witness went to Congress office to 
meet Mr. Lalsangzuala. Before that he also visited the Congress office and handed 
over those dummy ballot papers to Mr. Thangliaha and Mr. Bawitluanga. On 
28th April he informed Mr Lalsangzuala at the Congress office that he had beard 
at Khatla polling station people talking about submission of apology with regard to 
the dummy ballot paper to the R.O. or somebody else. 

49. In his deposItion Respondent No. I denies the allegations brought by the elec· 
tion petitioner and says that it is not a fact that those dummy ballot papers like 
Ext. PA were published and distributed with his consent and knowledge. He al,o 
denit's such papers having been distributed by his workers or those 
4 1adies named by the election petitioner. After receiving the election petition, he 
enquires about this and came to know that no such dummy ballot papers were 
distributed in Khatla Bungkawn on 25.4.79 or in Tuikual on 27.4.79. He also en­
quired and found that no such paper was bung in public notice boards. He also 
enquires of Mr. D.P. Liankaia about the aUeged letter of regret written to the 
Assistant Returning Officer, but Mr. Liankaia denied to have issued such a letter. 
He further says that Mr. Liankaia was President of Khatla P.C.P. unit which is no 
more than a village unit and that the alleged letter dated 25.4.79 was written to 
the R.O. by him on his own account and without authority, knowledge and con· 
sent of the witness (Respondent No.1) or his agent. He also affirms that even the 
Khatla village unit of the party dit not authorise Mr. Liankaia to write this letter. 
As- regards Mr. Hnamte, Proprietor of the Hnamte Press, he says that this person 
might be the worker of People's Conference Party. The witness says that during 
the election campaign he published leaflets containing his appeal and photograph. 
He is not sure whether some of his papers Were printed at Hnamte Press. He also 
does not know whether those lady workers (named above) were- his wokers. The 
witness gives out that he did not know all the activities of his party workers and 
that normally they work with knowledge <:md consent of the party units. 
R. W. 2 is Mr. A. V. Pakunga. He contested the assembly election in 
1979 from 29 Aizawl West Constituency. He does not give any light about 
publication and distribution of dummy ballot papers; but he delloses that he heard 
Mr. Thanchhuma telling about the quarrel between Congress Workers on the one 
hand and the P.C.P. workers on the other hand in· the shop of Thanchhuma and 
that he saw Thanchhuma at the polling booth of Tuikual on the day of poll. He 
affirms that People's Conference Party- had girl workers doing house to house 
campaign at Dinthar which is about 3 KMS from Khatla. He come to know 
about the c0mplaint lodged by Mr. Lalsangzuala to the Returning Officer regar­
ding the dummy ballot papers afterwards and does not remember from whom he 
learnt this and that was about three months after the election. R.W. 3, Lalbeiseii, 
daughter of G.L. Hnamte is aged 1 8  years. It transpires from her deposition 
that she is not a member of any political party nor is she connected with 
any political party. She did not take part in any campaigning for any 
political party in the election of 1979. About 213 months after the elec­
tions respondent No. I met her and enquired from her regarding distribu-
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tion of dummy ballot papers. She informed him that she never distributed any dummy ballot paper. She denies her acquintance "ith the other girls named by the petitioner as having distributed dummy ballot paper. Hnamte Press belongs to h�" famlly. She does not know if respondent No. 1 visited Khatla before the elect.lOn. She is a resident of Khatla and denies having met Mr. Zada wla all 25th AprIl. 1979 on the way. But later she says that she does not remember If she met Mr. Zadawla before the ejections. She also denies having given any dummy ballot paper to Mr. Zadawla on 25. 4. 79 telbng him jokingly that he was a Vai Pawl and that he should vote for \1'r. 
Zarremthanga. 
50. R. W. 4 is  Lalkrosthangi. daughter of Zatianga. She is aged 14 years and 
belongs to Khatla. On seeing Ext. P. 4 she says that she never saw thlS paper 
before. She did not distribute any ballot raper like this. She knows Tiangengi 
and Zodinpuii of Khatla. After the elections Mr. Zairemthanga met her and en­
quires from her as to whether she distributed dummy ballot papers. She reo 
plied in the negative. She denies having given Pu Zadawla any paper bemg in 
company with Lalbeiseii. Zodinpuii and Tlangengi on 25. 4. 79. R. W. 5 is 
Tlangengi, daughter of D.P. Liankaia. She is aged 24 years and belongs 10 Khat· 
lao She is an L.D. Assistant in P.W. Departmfnt. She denies having worked for 
any candidate in 1979 elections. Her father belongs to People's Conference Party. 
She did not distribute any paper like Ext. P. 4 or P, 6. After 2/3 months of the 
elections Mr. Zairemthanga met her at her house and on his enquiry whether she 
distributed the papers' in which the photograph of �r. Zairemthanga was printed 
she said HI distributed. He showed me one white coloured paper resembling a hal­
lot paper. This \\las attached to some- other paper. The paper was thi('ker than 
Ext. p, 4. That ",as the only paper shown to me" . She was a voter in the afore­
said elections. Again she says "1 was not a worker of the P.C. 
Party candidate during the last election in 1979. I di-;tribllted 
papers for Mr Zairemthanga in the last election. I did not 

• 
distribute papers with Lalbeiseii. Zodinpuii and Lalkrosthangi. I took my small 
sister with me to distribute the papers. I gave them to my neighbours as my father 
asked." Next says she in the cross-examination "He (Zairemthanga) ask�d me 
of the papers I distributed. I distributed about 2/3 copies of pamphlets beanng the 
phothograph of Mr. Zairemthanga. Mr. Zairemthanga told me showing a p'eper 
which is little thicker and bigger than the ballot paper from his file white in co­
lour and told me Mr. R. Thangliana had filed a case in the High Court accusing 
him of distributing the same. Mr. Zairemthanga asked me whether I, Lalbeiseii, 
Zodiopuii and Lalkrosthangi distributed those papers. I only told him that I did 
not distribute and I did not tell about other girls. I do not know if they have 
distributed. I cannot say jf they distributed dummy ballot papers . ,  . .  , I used to 
meet Mr. Zadawla on my way to church. He used to play with me." It is also in 
her evidence "My father told me that summons from the HIgh Court has come 
and that I should go to stand as witness to depose regarding di�tribution of dum­
my ballot papers". She further says "Mr. Zairemthanga showed me a paper which 
may be similar to Ext. PA which is white Colour. I do not remember if lhat 

. paper contained the seven names and seven symbols as there in Ext P.4 
That paper did not contain the photograph of Mr. Zairemthanga. I do 

....., not remember if it contained his name, Zairemthanga as in Ext. PA 
(2) . . . . . . . .  ill the papers shown by Mr. Zrdremthanga I am not �ure 
if  there was a hand in horizontal position as in Ext. P.4 (1), But there J11a� !-:c 
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hand in upright position. I do not know if he showed me a paper lik� Ext. P.4 
bearing the name of Mr. T. Sailo. He did not show me any paper WIth �lmIlar 
writing as in Ext. P.6 . .. ' .. ... ... .n might be that he left the house after askmg me 
about the paper like Ext. P.(4):" 

51. R.W.6 is Zodinpuii. She is aged 24 years and belongs to Khatla. It tran�­
pires from the evidence that she did not ca�paign !lor did she work fo� any polIti­
cal party in the elections of 1979. She demes havmg seen any paper lIke Ext. P.4 
before her coming to the witness box. Mr. Zairemthanga met her and enqUIred 
from her as to whether she distributed papers in the elections. She said that she 
did not distribute any paper either alone or in the company of other ladi�s. She 
denies having passed over any paper to Mr. Zadawla of Khatla. She dIScloses 
that she did not know in which case she was summoned by the Court but the dnver of 
the car in which she had to appear in Court. This took pldce in Mizoram House 
at Gauhati. She does not know if that in Mizoram house the other lady witnesses 
talked to her about the case. Says "Mr. Zairemthahga did not ask me if I had 
distributed any dummy ballot paper, but he only asked me whether I had distributed 
any paper. I did not ask why he w"' asking me this question. He did not tell me that 
Mr. Thangliana had filed a case in the High Court alleging that I and Lalbeiseii and 
others had distributed dummy ballot papers." She denies having seen any paper like 
Ext. PA or P.6 nor did any body show her any such paper before. P.W.7 is Mr. C. Ram­
Hana ofTuikual who is anemployee of a motor workshop in Tuikual. He took part 
in the election campaign in 1979 for the People's Conference Party. His activity 
was confined to Tuikual area. He along with others distributed papers house to 
house and the papers contained an appeal of Mr. Zairemthanga. He denies hav­
ing distributed any paper like Ext. P.4 and says that the papers they di;tributed 
contained a photograph of Mr. Zairemthanga and the symbol of the People's Con­
ference Party. 2/3 months after the elections Mr. Zairemthanga met him and showed 
him a paper like Ext. PA and informed him that Mr. Th.ngliana had filed a case 
alleging distribution of papers like this. He informed Mr. Zairemthanga that he 
did not distribute any such paper. Mr. Zairemthanga went to the polling station 
of Tuikual at about 10/1 1 A.M. during his presence there. He says that he distri­
buted two kinds of papers - one containing the photograph and symbol of Mr. Zai­
remthanga and the other containing an appeal issued by the People's Conference 
Party to voters for voting in favour of the Party. He also deposes that Mr. Thang­
thuama also distributed papers on behalf of the People's Conference Party. The 
witness deposes further HI had seen posters, pamphlets and appeals 
hung on the walls and fences in the Tuikual area. I saw many 
posters and pamphlets including those of Congress I on public notice 
boards within Tuikual area. I did not see any Congress pamphlets with 
photograph, but I saw pamphlets with symbols. [ did not see any other appeal eX' 
cept those with the photograph and symbols" R.W. 8 is  Thangthuama who is a 
member of the People's Conference Party since its inception in 1975. In the elec­
tion of 1979 he worked for the People's Conference Party in Tuikual area. He 
denies having distributed any dummy ballot paper like Ext. PA or P.6. 
About three months after the elections Mr. Zairemthanga went to his residence and 
showed him a paper like Ext. P.4. Mr. Zairemthanga enquired of him as to whe­
ther he distributed papers similar to those during the elections. He replied in the 
negative. He did not meet Mr. Thanchuama on the day of poll. But he met him 
after about two weeks of the electIon. He says that he worked together with Mr. 
Liankaia for the party. Apart from other workers including the witness, there 
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wer� also lady workers for his Party. Those lady workers also distribuled papers durmg the electIon campaign. He fW1her says that there were quite a ntlmber of Jady workers for the P.C. Party. The witness says "We also distributed om papers to voter� who Were thought to be Congress supporters. The Congress workers also gave then papers to our workers. I did not give the papers to Mr ThanchuJ.ma bec�use he dId not be1<;mg to my area." H� further says that there was no di stri­hutlOo ?f papers at IUlkual when the public meeting Was held at TuikuaI in w:lich .Mr. Zatremthanga was present. Says he "Around Tuikual area on Ull sHes fences, walls and public notice boards and all around there v,'cre l1ug� num?er of posters, appeal and pamphlets hung all around. It was not possI�!e for mc_ t� read or see individually all the appeals and porters" . Also he says . As. Mr. Zalrem�ha?ga was. one . of the leaders of the Party, whatever p::: per was dIstrIbuted \\'us dlstnbuted with h Is  knowledge and consenf'. R.W. 9 is Shri K. Biakchungnnng
.
a, tfte President of the People's Conference Party. He bagged one seat of the VI.zaram Assembly in the elections of 1979 on behalf of {liS party. 

He dIscloses ·that the appeals for voting issued by individual candidates of bis paty 
had to be approved by the General Headquarters and that apart from the Head­
quarters no other unit or branch of the party was permitted to publish any appeal 
or any other document. He says that Mr. Zairemthanga published an appeal re­
questmg to vote for him containing his photograph and another appeal containing 
his bio-data and that these documents did not bear the symbol of any other party. 
He denies that allY ballot· paper like Ext. P. ' 4 or Ext. P.6 was published and 
distributed under the authority or knowledge of the party headquarters 
Of any subordinate unit of the party. It is disclosed from his evidence 
that Some of the candidates mIght have got their personal appeals printed 
in other Presses than the Maranatha Press. The witness did not inquire in lhe 
A.R.O's Office as to whether Mr. Liankaia has written any letter of 
apology to the A R.O. (Mr. Gupta) when he came to know of this al egalion 
from the election petition. R.W. 10 is Mr. Lalhmingthanga who 
belongs to People's ·Conference Party and who was a resid ent of 
Khutla. Mr. Zai remthanga met him in lunef79 after the elections as he VIas SI�C­
retary of the party unit and as Mr. Liankaia was out of Aizawl and npprised 
him of the election casco On enquiry made by Mr. Zairemthanga in that behlIf 
about publication of dummy ballot papers and about the Jetter of apology writt�n 
bv Mr. D.P. Liankaia to A.R.O. in connection with distribution of dummy ballot 
papers, the witness told Mr. Zairemthanga "That the Unit President had 10 au· 
thority to print !'.lIch papers and further that the unit itself did not have any au· 
tharity to make any printing or pUblication of papers without the instruction of 
General Headqll3.rters." The witness further says that he knew that Mr. Liankda 
did not print any paper like Ext. P. 4 and did not distribute any such paper 
or did not 6,..;nd any letter of apology to the A.R O. The witness disclm.es 
that Mr. Zairernthanga did not discuss with him about ttw, issue of dummy 
ballot papers by Mr. D,f. Liankaia. 
52. From the evidence of P. W. 4 Thangchuama and the evidence of P. W. 5 
R. Zadawla it transpires that the Offending dummy ballot papers were districuted in 
29 Aiza\d West Constituency by the workers of the People's Conference Pa:ty .\.s 
said before P.W. 4, saw such distribution on 27th April while he was proceeding 
fro"'11 Tuikual to Lm·ngmual he saw workers 'of People's Conferenc: PaJty 
doing bouse to hou!'.e campaigning and distributing pamphlets and leaflets. He al�o 
says that they dist ributed papers showing wrong symbol of Congress (1). Such t=a­
pers were dispL"�yed and hung all aroutld such as on notice boards, fences and hill 
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sides. He also says ,hat at the polling bo?th they (Congress-I workers) had not 

altercation with the workers of the People s Conference Party about those paPbfs 

and on the question of displaying wrong symbol of Cong�ess (I).. He deposes t at 

papers similar to Ext. P.4 dummy ballot paper were distnbuted In TUlkual area by 

the workers of the People's Conference Party. P.W. 5 Mr. Zadawla as saId before 

deposes to the fact of distribution of wrong dummy ballot papers at Khatla and 

Bungkawn on 25th April, 1979 morning by Tlangengl, Zodmpul!, Lalkrosthangl and 
Lalbeiseii. This took plaee whIle the wItness and other workers of Congress, <I) 
were distributing the symbol of Mr. Thanghan.. He also says that those gals 
workers handed OVer to them jokingly some offcndmg dummy ballot papers ask­
ing them to vote for People's Conferen�e Party and that . t�e wItness and others 
of his party also passed OVer to those gIrls leaflets contaInIng the symbol of Mr. 
ThangIiana in turn asking them jokingly to vote for them (the Congress�I rart�). 
The evidence of these two witnesses has not been shaked by- cross·exarnlnatlon III 
this respect. The giri workers who have been c�amined by respondent No. � of­
course denied such dis.tdbution. R.W.S Tlangengl however admIts that she distri­
buted Papers for Mr. Zairemthanga in that election though she denies having done 
so together with other three girls examined in this case. She says that she took 
her small sister to accompany her in the work of distribution of papers. But at 
the beginning of her deposition she give�'- out that she never worked for any candi­
date in the elections of 1979. She also says that she distributed those papers as 
told by ber fathel Mr. D.P. Liankaia. Of-course she narrates that sbe distributed 
2/3- copies of pampblets bearing tbe photograph of Mr. Zairemthanga. As regards 
Mr. Zadawla she admi!s that she had playing terms with him in her examination 
sbe further states that before coming to the Court her father told her that she 
should stand as witness to depose regarding distribution of dummy ballot papers. 
A thorough scanning of the evidence of the girl witnesses for respondent No. 1 to­
gether with the political affiliation of their fathers point to an inference though not 
conclusive that they took part in distributing the offending dummy ballot papers. 
It is to be noted that no pamphlet or dummy ballot papers has been produced in 
Court on behalf of respondent No. I alleged to have been distributed by the workers 
of the People's Conference Party. The evidence of the eye-witnesses for the peti­
tioner viz. Mr. Thangchuama and Mr. Zadawla is rather corroborated by the shaky 
evidence of the girl witnesses for respondent No. 1 along with other materials 
on record. 

53. The evidence of complaint filed by the General Secretary Mr. Lalsangzualla 
also remains unshaken and it is corroboratad by the written statement of respondent 
No. 7. It does not appear from the record that respondent No. 7 has any hostile 
interest against respondent No. 1 or  that the aforesaid written statement was not filed 
by/or on hehalf of respondent No. 7. Next as regards the letter of regret written 
by Mr. D.P. Liankaillf President of Khatla Unit it has to be said that this is corro­
borated by the evidence of P.W. I ,  Mr. T Gupta. He was the Assistant Returning 
Officer and .he says "Mr. D.P. Liankaia submitted a petition to me stating that he 
published some dummy ballot papers. He submitted some documents with the petition 
I do not remember having received any dummy ballot paper along with the petition. 
1 have come across dummy ballot papers lime one as document 'X'. The 
document marked 'X' is the document marked Ext. P.4 ............ o n  being instructed 
by the Returning Officer, I forwarded the application with all, enclosures to the 
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Superintendent of Police for necessary action." There is no suggestion on behalf of 
respondent No.1 that the petition referred to by Mr. Gupta as having been submi1ted 
by Mr. Llankala was somethIng else than the alleged letter of regret. This is a 
strong corrobotation of the evidence of such a petition adduced on behalf of the 
election petitioner 

54. The offending dummy ballot paper has b�en found to have been printed at the 
Hnamte Press and it has been seen that the owner of the Hnamte Press was affiliated 
to the Peoples Conference Party. R.W. Lalbeiseii is the daughter of Mr. G.L. Hnamte 
owner of .the Press. As it has been found that the questioned dummy ballot pape� 
was printed at the Hoamte Press, a presumption goes in favour of the election 
petitioner that the dummy ballot paper was also published and distributed. 

55, As regards the documentary evidence this has been discussed before. The 
existence of Ext. P. 4 itself points to the fact that though to a very limited extent 
that such dummy ballot papers got circulated in �the area of 29 Aizawl West 
Constituency. 

56. It has not been the case of the respondent that the election petitIOner or 
somebody else on his behalf or any other person or party printed and distributed 
this dummy ballot paper in order to put the (espondent in difficulty and to give a 
handle to the election petitioner for coming to Court with an election petition in 
case he got defeated. 

57. It having been found that the olfending dummy baliot papor was distributed by 
some workers of People's Conference Party, it remains to be seen as 10 whether 
respondent No.1 or his election agent or any other person with his consent or with 
consent of the election agent published and distributed this dummy ballot paper. 
58. In S. N. Balakrishna (Supra) it has been laid down that there must be some 
reas<..nable evidence from which an inference can be made of the meeting of the 
minds as to the publication or at least a tacit approval of the general conduct of 
the agent. Balakrishna also laid down the standard by, which the returned c,',ndi­
date may be held liable for currupt practice perpetrated during the elections. It is 
an established principle of the law that -mere knowledge of corrupt practIce is not 
enough to rope in the returned candidate on the ground that such knowledg� 
implied consent as it has been ruled in several � cases that knowledge is not consent. 
59. It bas been argued on behalf of the election petitioner that though there be 
no' direct evidence to prove consent of respondent No. 1 to the publication of the 
offending dummy ballot paper, it must be found to have been proved by the cir­
cumstantial evidence on record. Practically there is no direct evidence to prove 
that the dummy· ballot paper concerned was in fact printed, published O f  caused 
to be published or printed by any agency of the returned candidate. The elc.,:tion 
petitioner's case is that it was done with the consent of the returned candidate . 
Learned Counsel Mr. Majumder referred to B. Rajagopala Rao v. N. G. Ranga 
AIR 1971 SC 267 and argued that by the circumstances on record it has been 
established that respondent No. 1 had his consent to the printing and publication of the 
dummy baUot paper. In B. Rajagopala (Supra) it has been held that proof of ex­
press consent is not necessary and that inference of such consent may be raIsed 
from the circumstances. It was also held therein that prior knowledge or the con-
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tents and the knowledge that it is  likely to be published may raise and infere�ce 
of consent if the candidate deliberately keeps quiet does dot stop the pubbcabon 
if it be within his power and that where the offending matter has already been 
puhlished and thereafter it comes to the knowledge of the candidate at the el�c­
tion and he does not take steps to repudmte Its, the consent may not necessanly 
be inferred unless the candidate or his election agent permits or aids in publica­
tion. In the instant case no prior knowledge or knowledge at the time of the elec­
tion on the part of the returned candidate has b{:en proved. It is in evidence that 
before the poll day there was a meeting for the People's Conference Party which 
was a ttended by respondent No. 1 ,  but there is no evidence that the offending 
dummy ballot p"aper was distributed either in the meeting or during the time of 
the meting in the :o;urroundings of the venue of the meeting so as to ascribe 
knowlegde thereof to the returned candidate. Fr()m the evidence of P.W. 4 
Thanchuama it is found that when there was an altercation between the 
workers of the People's Conference Party and the workers of Congress 
(I) at the polling booth, Mr. Zairemthanga appeared there. 
But it is not on record as to whether Mr. Zairemthanga came to 
know of the subject matter of the altercation or Of the matter of circulation of wrong 
dummy ballot papers. Apart from this, there is no evidence to show that respondent 
No. 1 visited the area during his election campaign or that he had any possible 
source of informotion about the dummy ballot paper or knowledge about the 
Printing and publication thereof. Mr. Majumder argued that becaUse the dummy 
ballot paper was printed in the Hnamte Press and beeause the dummy bollot paper 
was circulated by the workers of the People's C)nference Party and olso because 
Mr. D.P. Liankaia wrote a letter of regret about the dummy ballot paper to the A. 
R. O. it must be held that the returned candidate had knowledge of and consent 
to the publication of the dummy ballot paper. But there is no allegation that the 
letter of regret was submitted by Mr. D.P. Liankaia with knowledge/consont of the 
general headquarters or of the returned candidate. Mr. Majurnder also argued that 
Mr. D.P. Liankaia was a responsible person of the party being Pr"ident of the 
Khatla Unit and that his letter of regret could not have seen the light of the day 
without the consent of the returned candidate or without prior consultation with 
the returned candidate. But there is no compeJJing reason to make this inference. 
It is the case of the returned candidate that even if the dummy ballot papers were 
circulated and even if Mr. D.P. Liankaia submitted a letter of regret to the A.R.O. 
both the things were done without knowledge and ,;onsent of the returned candidate. 

ft has not been proved or there is no material where from it can be 
inferred that Mr. Liankaia besides being unit President of Khatla unit of the 
P.C.P., was 1I.lso an election agent/agent of the returned candidate. It is also not 
there in the evidence that the dummy ballot paper was published and circulated 
with consent of any election agent of the returned candidate. It is the case of 
the election petitioner that because there is an appeal in the name ·of Mr. Zairem· 
thanga in the offending dummy baUot paper, it has to be presumed that it was 
published with his consent. It was also argued that the returned candidate ·did 
not produce in Court the pamphlet or leaflet that wa'; circulated in his favour du­
ring the election for which it has to be taken that the offending dummy ballot pa­
per was the only document which was published and circulated in favour of respon­
dt:nt No. 1 .  But I think that this is not enough to establish a nexus between 
consent of the returned· candidate and any of these circumstances beyond reasona-
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ble doubt. As referred to above, the principle is that tbe charge of corrurt 
practice has to be established beyond reasonable doubt although in M. Naray" na 
Rao (supra) it was held that the respondent has also some duty in meeting the 
evidence of the election petitioner , nd that he should not be allowed to keep mum. 
But in that decision and in the other decisions referred to above, it was 
held that the onus of proof mainly lies on the election petitioner 
regarding corrupt practice. The principle of criminal jurispmdence 
that the onus of the defence is less stringent than that of the prosecution is also 
applicable in' an election dispute. In the instant case as _said above, there is no 
cogent evidence to show beyond reasonable doubt that the returned candidate had 
any consent with regard to the dummy ballot paper. Mr. Majumder's another con­
tention was that in view of the evidence of the R.Ws. who :deposed that all parers 
were circulated with the approval of the Head Quarters of P.c.P. or respondent 
No. I, it must be taken that the offensive ' dummy ballot paper received approval 
from tbat Head Quarters and the respondent. But the logic does not appear to be 
sound as if one way be taken there, the reverse way may Dot be there. The circum· 
stances alluded to by Mr. Majumdar no doubt IOise some suspicion of corrplicity of 
respondent No. 1 in the matter of publication of the offensive dummy ballot paper; 
but suspicion is no SUbstitute for proof. 

60. Now it has to be seen whether the case faUs under tlie mischief of section 
100 (1) (d); that is whether the result of the election in so far as it concern the re­
turned candidate has been materially affected by any corrupt practice committed in 
the interest of the returned candidate by an agent other tban his election agent. 
Firstly, it has to be said that there is no proof that those who. publishedJdistriblited 
the -dummy ballot papers were agents of the returned candidate or whether 
any of them was an agent of the returned -candidate. To work for a 
particular political party does not implY agency fvr the candidate of the party . 
Some enthusiastic workers of tbe People's Conference Party or supporters of the 
returned candidate might have published the offending dummy ballot paper, but 
this does not imply that they had any agency of the returned candidate. Secondly, out 
of an electorate of IO,0l3 voters in that constituency, the returned candidate recei­
ved 2,448 votes in his favour while the election petitioner recei\'ed 1 ,352 votes. So 
there was a difference of 1.096 votes by wh-ich the returned candidate won the eJec­
tion. It does not appear unless there are special circumstances leading to such an 
inference, which in my view are lacking in this case that the returned candiclate 
won the election by such a wide margin against the election petitioner due to the 
publication of the dummy ballot -pap<;r, -The-- -extent of the circulation of the 
dummy ballot paper has nol" been showh by the election petitioner. There is evidence 
that the party worker of �e election petitioner held intensive and extensive election 
�mpaigD publishing and circulating the correct sym·bol of the election retitioner 
ID the constituency. His r...ase is that about 20% of the voters are cultivators 
engaged in Jhum cultivation and most of the people are either illiterate or semi 
literate. It is also his case that some Nepali Gorkha people who are mostly 
engaged in rearing cows for rni1k are mostly illiterate. But it has not been proved 
by the election petitioner by evidence as to what was the percentage of Gorkha voters 
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in the constituancy and their percentage of illiterecy. On tb,e other hand it is 
follJld from \fle evidcnc:<; of (be rel.\lrned candidat. that J�re Was quite a IIOOd 
number of educated pe.wns .among (he Nepali' and thaI many of tbem were ...... 
ving in �oolsaDd other est�b1ishll)ents. After all it bas not been proved by tile 
oIectioo pelilioner that the result of the election in so far as it concerned the 
returned candjda� has heen materially affected by the corrupt practice ' committed 
in bis interest. It ill therefore found that the matter of pUblication of the dummy 
ballot paper lk>1lS not {aU within the mischief of section 100 ll) (d) of the Act. 

61. The issues are tberefore answered as aforesaid. 

fa. In view of the aforesaid discussion and the coociusions it is fOlllld that tJae eJec. 
tion petition bas to be dismissed and it is hereby dismissed. la view of the cu--

l. ' tlJl<e& of tho case. The electioa petiticmer will pay to Responden1 No. 1 eest of 
Ito. 500.00 (live bundracl) Daly. 

. 1  
S.M. Ali, � Jud&e. 
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